SRNEY HIRMBEh

he FE R IT
CANADIA BANK

INWMINNUGIH 2024
Annual Report | FEH S

Zows Best Financial Pardier!



K RIKRIKRHKRIKRKRHKRHKRHKARS
ZANYIANYIZANYIANVIANYIANYIZANYIANVIANYIANYIANVIANYIANYIANYIANYZANYIANYZANYZ,
IRR KR IR RIR IR R KKK
I\/\I\I\/\I\I\I\I\*I\I\/\I*\I\I\I\I\I
NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYANTZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZAN
ZANYZANYIANYIANVIANYIZANYIZANVZANYZANYZANVIANYIZANYZANYZANYZANYANYIANYZAN
\I\I\I\I\‘\/\I\I*\I\I\‘\I\I\I\I\I\/*\I
4\/\/\/\/\/\/\I\I\I\I\/\/*\I\I\I\I\I\
NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYANYIANYZANYIZANYZAN
I\/$$\/\I\I\I\I\I\I\/\I\I\I$$\1$
NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANVZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZAN
ZUNYIANYIANYIANYIANYZANYIANY ANV IANVIANVIANY ANV ANV ANVIANYIANYIANYZANYZ,
\I\I¢I\I\/&/\I\I\I\I\*/\I\I\I\I\I\I\
ZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANYIZANYIANVIANYIANVIANVIANVIANYIANYIZANYZANVIANYZANY Y,
\I\I\I\*I\I\I\I\/\ﬁ\*’\/\/\l\l\/\/\l*\
ZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANVIANYIANVIANVIANVIANVIANYIANYZANYIANYZANY Y,
NYZANVZANYZANTYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANTZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANVZANYZAN
I\I\/\I\I\$I\I\I\I\I\I\I\$/\/\I\$/
\I\I\I\I\I\I*\I\I\I\I\I\/\I\I\I\I\I\I\
/

ZUNVZANYIANYIANVIANYIZANYZANYZANYZANYANVIANYIZANYZANYZANY ANV IANYIANYZAN
\*/\*/\/\*I\t\*/\/\/\/\*\ﬁ\*/\t\/\/\/\/\/\
4\4\/*\4\/\4\/%@4\4\/\/*\/*\4\/
DR IRORR KRR IRIRR IR IRRIRIRRS
SRR KRR IRRR R IRRRIRIRRIRIK
ZANYZANYIANYIANYIANYIANYZANVZANYANYIANYIANYZANYIANYIANYIANYIZANYZANYIANY Y,
\/*\I\I*\*@I\/\*’*\*’\*\I&I\I\*’\I\*’\‘\I\*\
ZANYZANYIANYIANYIANYIANYZANYIZANYANVIANYIZANYZANYZANYIANYIANYZANYZANYIANY Y,
ZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANVIZANYIANYIANYIANVIANYIANYZANYIANVIANYZANY Y,
/\I*)(*)(\/\I\I\I*\I\/\/\/\/*\ NYZANYZAN

N\YZANYZAN (/
ZUNYZANYIANYIANVIANYIZANYZANYIANYIANYIANVIANYIZANYZANVIANYIANYIANVIANYIANYZ,
\I*\/\/\I\*I\*/\*/\/\I\I*\‘\**/\*I\I\I\*/\/\
SRR R RR IR IRRIR IR IRRIRIRIRRRK
ZANVZANYIANYIANYIANYZANYZANYIZANYANYIANYZANYZANYIANYIANYIANYZANYIZANYIANY Y,
\I\I*\I*\I\I\/\/*\/\I\/\I\I\/*\I\/*I*\I*\I*\
ZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANYZANYIANVIANYANYIANVIANYIANYIANYIZANVIANVIANYZANY Y,
\/\I\/\*/*\ﬁ\I\ﬁ\/\/\/\**\/\*]\/\/\/\
I\/\/\I\/&I&I\/\/\I\I\/\I\*/&/\I\*/
NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANVIANYANYZANYZANYZANYIANYZANYZAN
/\*I\*/\/\/\/\/\I\/\I*\*\I\I\I\*’\/\I\/
NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANY ANV ZANYZANYIZANY ANV IANYIANYZANYIZANYANYIANYZANYZAN
I&I\/\I&I&I»I\/\/\I&I»I&I&I\/\/\I\I\/
\I\/\I\I\/\I&I\/\/\/\I\I\I\/\/\I\/\/\
ZANVIZANYIANYIANYIANYZANYZANVIANYANVIANYZANVIZANVIANYIANYIANYZANVZANYIANY Y,
SRR R RR IR RIRRIRIRIRRIRIRIRRK
ZANYZANYIANYIANYIANYIANYZANVIZANYIANYIZANYZ, NYZANYZAN\
NYZANYZAN

NYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZANYZ, )(ﬁ\/\/(*)(»()()(
ARARK KR ARKR KK KKK KR KRR

(/
N\
(/



Table of

Contents
01 Corporate Profile 01
02 Message from Chairman and CEO 03
03 Corporate Governance 18
04 Environment, Social, and Governance (ESG) 27
Disclosure
05 Corporate Social Responsibility 29
06 2024 At A Glance 35
07 Awards and Recognition 36
08 Financial Highlights 37
09 Report of the Board of Directors 39



10 Independent Auditor's Report 43
11  Financial Statements 47
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 47
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 48
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 49
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 51
Separate Statement of Financial Position 52
Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 53
Separate Statement of Changes in Equity 54
Separate Statement of Cash Flow 56
12 Notes to Financial Statements 73
13 Canadia Bank Branches 177
14 Correspondent Banks 181




01 CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Who
We Are

Corporate Profile

Founded in 1991 and fully privatized in 1998, Canadia
Bank has earned its reputation as a leading local full-
service commercial bank in Cambodia. With over
three decades of experience in the financial market,
we have built a strong foundation and demonstrated
resilience through any economic situation. As a
result, Canadia Bank commands a significant market
share in both loans and deposits, supported by an
extensive network of local and international banking
relationships.

At Canadia Bank, we provide a comprehensive range
of banking products and services tailored to meet the
evolving needs of individuals and businesses. Our
offerings include innovative solutions in Deposits,
Loans, Digital Payments, Foreign Exchange, Local
and International Remittances, Debit and Credit

Cards, Cash Management, and Trade Finance. We are
committed to delivering value-driven services that
foster long-term relationships, helping our customers
achieve their financial goals.

With a nationwide network of 69 branches and
approximately 430 self-service digital machines, we
continue to expand our reach and advance our digital
transformation through cutting-edge technologies.
Our dedication to innovation ensures that we provide
exceptional customer experiences through user-
friendly digital banking solutions and personalized
service, keeping us at the forefront of Cambodia's
banking industry.

@ Corporate Mission

To be the Best Partner to our customers and employees by leveraging our people,

technology, and service delivery.

&) Corporate Vision

To be recognized as the Best Bank in Cambodia.
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Core
Values

Trust

We build Trust with Integrity with our customers and
Teamwork with our colleagues.

Ownership

We take Ownership and seek win-win solutions.

Performance-Driven

We adhere to the “One Bank" drive for performance
and celebrate success.

Innovation

We do continuous Innovation for better ways to serve
our customers and the Bank.

Customer Focus

We provide our Customers with the Best Quality
Service by listening and attending to their needs.
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Message From
The Chairman
& CEO

Dear Shareholders,
Domestic and Global Economic Outlook

In 2024, the global economy exhibited resilience
but faced challenges with a slow growth of 3.1%,
while contending with persistent inflation and rising
geopolitical and trade-related uncertainties. Advanced
economies experienced marginal improvements,
whereas emerging markets struggled with disruptions
in commodity supply and heightened geopolitical
tensions. These conditions underscored the critical
importance of structural reforms, prudent monetary
policies, and enhanced international cooperation
in managing an increasingly complex economic
environment.

Cambodia's economy is on a recovery path and
demonstrated resilience amid global challenges
with an estimated growth rate of 5.5% in 2024,
underpinned by a strong performance in agriculture,
growth in garment export, recovering tourism sector,
and strategic investments ininfrastructure. However,
challenges include weaker global demand, and a
slower recovery in China.

Despite global uncertainties and domestic challenges,
Cambodia’s banking sector has remained resilient and
retained public trust. Supported by sound regulatory
oversight and strong confidence from the public,
the sector continues to play a key role in driving
economic recovery. Credit growth reached just 3%,
rising to US$ 59.9 billion amid cautious lending and
subdued demand, while deposits surged by 16.3% to
US$ 57 billion—demonstrating the sector's capacity
to absorb external shocks and adapt to shifting
financial dynamics.

In line with the Royal Government's policy to
stimulate economic activity and maintain financial
stability, the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC)
has allowed banking and financial institutions to

negotiate loan repayment terms with customers.
To facilitate the effective implementation of this
policy, some regulations have been relaxed such
as keeping the reserve requirement ratio at a low
level of 7% and implementing a capital conservation
buffer ratio of 1.25% until the end of 2025. These
measures enable banking and financial institutions
to maintain higher liquidity to continue lending to
customers. Additionally, the Financial Transparency
Corridor (FTC) was launched during the year
as a digital infrastructure initiative to establish
pre-agreements between Cambodian financial
institutions and those in partner countries. The
corridor is designed to facilitate cross-border trade
and financial services for micro, small, and medium-
sized enterprises (MSMEs), helping them connect
supply and demand, broaden market access, and
enhance cross-border financing through improved
information sharing among participating institutions.

Canadia Bank's Position

Our performance in 2024 demonstrated our
resilience and determination amid a challenging
market environment. Despite various headwinds,
we achieved a 9% increase in total revenue, driven
by an 8.1% rise in interest income and a significant
28.8% growth in non-interest income compared to
the previous year. However, a competitive deposit
market and elevated US interest rates led to higher
funding costs, contributing to a decrease in our net
profit to US$ 84.6 million. To further strengthen our
capital position, we injected an additional capital of
US$ 50 million during the year, bringing our total
paid-up capital to US$ 800 million. This reflects
the confidence of our shareholders in the banking
sector and the strong commitment to the Bank’s
long-term sustainability. Despite market pressures
and stiff competition, deposits increased by 11.7%
to US$ 6.9 billion, while our loan portfolio expanded
by 4.7% to US$ 5.2 billion, maintaining a healthy
yet conservative loan-to-deposit ratio of 76.4%.



Furthermore, our total assets grew by 8.3% year-
on-year to US$ 8.6 billion.

We continue to maintain a robust funding, liquidity,
and capital position, with a Tier 1 Capital Adequacy
Ratio (CAR) of 19.9% and a Solvency Ratio of 22.6%.
Our Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) stood high at
171.7%, well above regulatory requirements. These
indicators affirm our resilience and readiness to
capitalize on growth opportunities while remaining
well-prepared for future uncertainties.

As part of our commitment to building strong,
personal connections with clients, providing a
seamless and tailored banking experience, Canadia
Bank unveiled its premier services at five branches
in Phnom Penh including Smart Banking Head
Office, Olympia Branch, Koh Pich Branch, Smart
Branch Chenla and Khan 7Meakkakra Branch
(formerly known as Olympic). Each location features
an exclusive premiere lounge that provide an oasis
of comfort with complimentary beverages and free
Wi-Fi serviced by our dedicated and highly trained
Relationship Managers who provide personalized
support and financial consultations to meet every
client's banking needs with exceptional service.

As a leading commercial bank in Cambodia,
Canadia Bank continues to advance its digital
banking capabilities to enhance convenience and
accessibility for customers. As part of this initiative,
the Olympic and Khan Russey Keo branches
were relocated to more prominent and accessible
locations, offering upgraded facilities, advanced
digital banking technologies, and comprehensive
Premier Banking services. In response to the
growing and diverse financial needs of our clients
in the Sihanoukville Special Economic Zone
(SSEZ), we also expanded the Prey Nob District
Branch to better serve local residents, Chinese and
international business owners, factory operators,
and their employees. Additionally, to support
the widespread adoption of social security fund,
we established 11 service counters in key NSSF
offices nationwide providing customers with
convenient access to open accounts and pay their
contributions. As of the end of 2024, Canadia Bank
operates 68 branches nationwide, supported by a
network of 332 ATMs, 67 Cash Recycling Machines
(CRMSs), 19 Virtual Teller Machines (VTMSs), and 8
Smart Card-Embossing Machines (SEMs) across
Cambodia.
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The year 2024 was a milestone for Canadia Bank,
as we had the distinct honor of being the only bank
in the country to host the official visit of Mr. John
KC Lee, Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Following this prestigious
visit and the recommendation of the Hong Kong
Investment Department, Canadia Bank made the
strategic decision to establish a representative
office in Hong Kong. This office will serve as a liaison
hub to engage with Hong Kong investors, promote
representational activities on behalf of the Bank,
and act as a vital bridge to strengthen investment
ties between Hong Kong and Cambodia.

In support of the national development strategy,
Canadia Bank signed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with the Ministry of Interior on
4 September 2024, tofacilitate seamless e-payment
services for visa fee collection from international
travelers entering Cambodia. Leveraging the Bank’s
latest digital payment solutions, this partnership
represents a significant step forward in advancing
Cambodia's digital economy. It also reflects
Canadia Bank’s continued commitment to digital
transformation by providing fast, secure, and user-
friendly e-payment options through the Cambodia
e-Arrival system—streamlining the visa application
process for international travelers.

As part of our ongoing digital transformation and
commitment to promoting financial inclusion across
ASEAN, Canadia Bank has introduced a new cross-
border payment feature on the Canadia Bank App.
This enhancement allows customers to make
seamless payments in Thailand and Vietnam by
simply scanning a QR code. Users can now make
transactions directly from their KHR accounts,
eliminating the need for currency exchange from
Riel or US Dollar to Thai Baht or Vietnamese Dong
before traveling. With this feature, Canadia Bank
customers can conveniently pay at a wide range of
establishments in Thailand and Vietham—including
restaurants, shopping malls, hospitals, clinics, and
other merchants that accept QR payments via the
PromptPay or VietQR networks.

To meet the evolving needs of corporate customers,
we revamped our corporate internet banking
platform by introducing new features that improve
usability, functionality, and security. These
enhancements provide a seamless and intuitive
digital banking experience, empowering businesses
to manage their financial operations more efficiently.
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Furthermore, to support the growth and resilience of
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in Cambodia’s
Northwest region, Canadia Bank and Canadia
Securities have formed a strategic partnership
with Deutsche Gesellschaft fir Internationale
Zusammenarbeit GmbH (GlZ). This collaboration
combines Canadia Bank’s strong financial expertise,
Canadia Securities' capital market insight, and GIZ's
development-driven approach through its Improved
Competitiveness of National Enterprises (ICONE)
program. Together, the initiative delivers technical
and soft skills training, promotes the adoption
of innovative digital solutions, and encourages
sustainable business practices to enhance the
competitiveness of Cambodian SMEs. Additionally,
Canadia Bank is actively participating in the Rice
Credit Guarantee Scheme in partnership with the
Credit Guarantee Corporation of Cambodia (CGCC).
This program aims to support rice exporters and
millers by improving access to financing, thereby
enhancing productivity and fostering healthy
competition among eligible participants. The initiative
also aligns with the Royal Government of Cambodia's
policy to expand the agricultural sector, particularly
rice exports. The scheme offers attractive benefits
such as reduced guarantee fees, higher guarantee
coverage, and competitive loan interest rates.

As one of Cambodia's largest commercial banks,
we are proud to receive multiple recognitions from
respected regional and international publications.
These accolades reflect our leadership in Consumer,
SME, and Corporate Banking, and our drive for digital
innovation and customer-focused excellence.

Euromoney's Best Bank for Corporates in 2024

o This award recognizes our dedication to
delivering robust and flexible financial solutions
for corporate clients. Our innovative financing
options and strategic partnerships with
both local and global entities ensure that we
provide personalized support that safeguards
and accelerates the growth of our clients'
businesses.

The Asian Banker's Best Retail Bank in Cambodia
in2024

o This prestigious accolade highlights the effective
management and consistent growth of our loan
portfolio, our innovative, customer-first approach
to retail banking, and the expansion of our digital
payment network that meet the needs of both
individuals and Government sectors.

International Finance Awards

. Best Commercial Bank in Cambodia in 2024
Marking our six consecutive years of win,
this recognition underscores our unwavering
resilience and dedication to providing exceptional
products and services to our customers through
continuous innovation, digital transformation
strategies, and consistent service delivery.

. Best Trade Finance Bank in Cambodia
in 2024: Awarded for the first time, this
acknowledges our strength in facilitating
smooth, secure trade finance for local and
international transactions. Our innovative
solutions help navigate complex supply chains
and Government projects with ease and
efficiency.

The Digital Banker's Best SME Bank in Cambodia
in2024

. This recognition, given second year in a row,
celebrates our dedicated support to SMEs via
accessible financing, trade finance solutions,
capacity-building, digital tools, and building a
sustainable payment ecosystem.

The Asian Business Review's Cambodia Technology
Excellence Awards 2024 in Digital Banking

. This regional award is a testament to our
relentless commitment in delivering seamless
and personalized digital banking experiences
that meet the market trends and evolving
needs of our customers. Our strategic initiatives
include enhancing service delivery, optimizing
and expanding the payment ecosystem, and
investing in cutting-edge technology that
redefine banking in Cambodia.

Recognized by the General Department of Taxation
(GDT) as one of the Largest Taxpayers in Cambodia
in 2024 - 2025

. We are honored to receive the Gold Tax
Compliance Certificate, a recognition that
reflects our commitment to maintaining the
highest standards of tax compliance and
accountability, while contributing to the
country’s sustainable economic development.

These accolades reflect the commitment and
dedication of our colleagues and reaffirm our mission
to be the “Best Financial Partner” for our customers
and a key contributor to Cambodia's growth.



Outlook for 2025

Uncertainties in tariffs and ongoing geopolitical
tensions are expected to have a negative impact on
global trade, causing a slowdown in global growth,
increased inflation, and greater economic uncertainty.
The IMF forecasts the global growth rate of 2.8% for
2025, with advanced economies contributing 1.4%
and developing economies accounting for 3.7%.

Despite challenges from the economic headwinds
resulting from trade tariffs, global uncertainties, and a
slowdown in the real estate and construction sectors,
Cambodia’s growth prospects remain strong and to
continue its recovery into 2025, with GDP projected
to grow by 6%, driven by rising tourism and increased
foreign direct investment.

Canadia Bank remains committed to continue
to invest in technology, as we view digitalization
and automation as essential to strengthening
our customer relationships. In late April 2025, we
launched an upgraded version of our Mobile App,
featuring a refreshed design, improved efficiency, and
enhanced user experience—along with arange of new
functions tailored to meet evolving customer needs.
Continuous enhancements are also being done with
our corporate internet banking and merchant app.

Looking ahead, our new Techo International Airport
(TIA) Branch and money exchange counters are set
to open in September 2025, in conjunction with the
inauguration and commencement of operations at
the airport. The TIA Branch will operate with extended

Lok Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se

Chairman
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hours aligned with airport schedules, providing
comprehensive banking services to travelers, retail
outlets, and businesses within the airport premises.

These advancementsindigitaland branch capabilities
further enable Canadia Bank to expand access to
underserved communities and grow our customer
base, particularly among SMEs and retail clients.
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Corporate Governance

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law on Commercial Enterprises
and under the supervision of the National Bank of Cambodia (“NBC" or “the Central Bank"), pursuant to the
Law on Banking and Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the Banking Licence No. 05
issued by the NBC, since 1991. The Bank's licence was renewed for an indefinite period following the NBC's
Prakas No. B7-06-207, dated 13 September 2006.

Canadia Bank Plc. is committed to conduct business in a prudent manner and to uphold the highest standard
of effective corporate governance. The Bank develops and maintains appropriate internal control and risk
management systems in compliance with the National Bank of Cambodia’'s (NBC) guidelines and principles
of effective corporate governance to achieve consistent strong performance results, sustainable growth, and
strong reputation and branding.

Information Disclosure and Transparency

The Bank has always recognized the importance of disclosing information that is necessary for stakeholders
and regulators. The Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for the preparation of the Bank’s financial
statement. The Board assigned the review of the financial statements to the Audit Committee to ensure they
are accurate, reliable, and in compliance with the NBC's guidelines and Cambodian Accounting Standards.
The annual report includes the audited financial statements and other relevant information, and is published
and disseminated to stakeholders. In addition, the Bank publishes the annual audited financial statements on
its website at www.canadiabank.com.kh.

Code of Conduct

The highest standards of professionalism, ethics, integrity, and honesty are expected of all employees of the
Bank. The staff and management are required to perform their work diligently and honestly, placing first the
interests of the Bank. In addition, all staff and management understand, accept, and abide by the Bank's Code
of Conduct, which is as follows:

° Not to solicit or to receive any solicited basis gifts, commissions, kickbacks, or valuables of any kind
from customers;

° Not to use their position to conduct private business;

. Not to conduct in any acts, behaviors, or arrangements causing damages to the Bank;

o Not to engage in any acts, behaviors, or arrangements causing damages to the Bank's reputation and/
or financial interest; and

o Maintain and safeguard confidential information.

Internal Control Unit

The Bank implemented various initiatives in order to establish an internal control system, which is in line with
generally accepted standards, and the NBC's regulations and guidelines. The Bank's internal control structure
includes the following:

1. The Audit Committee is charged with the duty and responsibility of reviewing the Bank’s financial
reports to ensure that they are accurate and adequately disclosed. The committee is responsible for ensuring
that the Bank's internal control and internal audit functions are adequate, appropriate, and effective. Along with
external and internal auditors, the committee reviews the systems on a regular basis.
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2. The Board’s Internal Control and Compliance Committee established an appropriate internal control
structure, system, and process to identify, evaluate, monitor, and manage significant risks that may affect the
achievement of business objectives. Compliance matters are reported to the Board, which provides a holistic
and overall view of all compliance matters across the Bank's operations.

3. The Internal Audit Division is responsible for performing the annual risk-based audit. The audit is
prioritized and scoped according to an assessment of financial and operational risk exposure of the Bank's head
office, including key operational divisions, and branch operations under the direct supervision and guidance of
the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Division reports directly to the Audit Committee.

4. The Internal Control and Compliance Department is responsible for providing recommendations to
ensure that the Bank is compliant with the rules and regulations issued by relevant authorities, as well as the
Bank's internal policies and procedures. The Internal Control and Compliance Department reports directly to
the Board's Internal Control and Compliance Committee.

5. The Bank has in place an appropriate “Whistleblowing” policy. The Chairman of the Board or the
Chairman of the Audit Committee reviews anonymous complaints that employees may raise about possible
misappropriation, malpractice, malfeasance, or conflicts of interest. The complaints are independently
investigated and followed-up.

Composition of Board of Directors

The composition of the Board has been realigned to strengthen its strategic capacity, overall business policy
development, and provide leadership for management and staff. As at 31 December 2024, the Board is
composed of Eleven (11) members, Four (4) of whom are Independent, Non-Executive Directors and One (1)
of whom is Non-Executive Director.

Name of Director Position/Type of Directorship
Lok Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se Chairman
Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon Executive Director
Dr. Pung Carolyne Executive Director
Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui Executive Director
Mr. Yee Con Long Executive Director
Mr. Leow Ming Fong Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. John Meinhold Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Phong Nguyen (Nguyen The Phong) Independent, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lim Socheat Non-Executive Director
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Independent, non-executive directors of the Bank are directors who meet qualifications and requirements
specified by the NBC's regulations. The Bank compiled The Director Independence Standards for the Board
of Directors, adopted to make its independent determinations with the exercise of a director's judgment
independent of the management.

Roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated, which is consistent with the corporate principle of balancing
power and authority. In addition, as a principle of good corporate governance, all directors are subject to re-
nomination and re-election every three (3) years, which is provided in the Bank’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association. All appointments of directors must be approved by the NBC.

Meetings

The Board schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months. In 2024, the Board held Five (5) meetings.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and Board
Commiittees

The Board directs the Bank in the conduct of its affairs. In doing so, the Board undertakes a fiduciary role to
ensure that corporate responsibility and ethical standards are met, and to ensure the viability of the Bank in the
best interest of the Bank's shareholders while also taking into account the interests of other stakeholders. The
Board is responsible for supervising the business operations, establishing corporate governance policies with
practical guidelines to ensure the functioning of its duties, setting strategic direction and long-term goals of
the Bank, ensuring that adequate resources are available to meet strategic objectives, and establishing a risk
framework and strategy for risks to be assessed and managed.

The Board formed committees which are divided into two level authorities: (1) the Board Committees and; (2)
Executive Management Committee, with particular terms of reference for regulatory purposes when it needs
assistance or when an issue requires more resources and attention. This allows the Board to concentrate on
broader strategic issues and directions.

The Board may either delegate some of its powers to the committee, enabling it to act directly, or may require
recommendations of the committee to be approved by the Board. The exact definition of the powers of the
committee will be governed in its Board's approved Charter.

1. Board Committees include: Audit Committee (AC), Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC),
Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee, Board Internal Control and Compliance Committee, and
Board New Product and Activities Committee.

2. Executive Management committees closely monitor and oversee the Bank's day-to-day operations,
and report actual progress to the Board on a regular basis. These committees include: Canadia Management
Committee (CMC), Credit Committee (CC), Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO), and
Human Resource Committee (HRC), Executive Risk Management and Compliance Committee (ERMC), and
Information Technology Steering Committee (ITSC). Each committee has written terms of reference that
describe the responsibilities of its members for day-to-day operation of the Bank.

For the purpose of compliance with the NBC guidelines, the Board committees are described as follows:
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The Audit Committee

Purpose

The primary objective of the Audit Committee (as a standing committee of the Board) is to assist the Board
in the effective discharge of its fiduciary responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting, and
internal control.

Composition

At the end of 2024, the Audit Committee is composed of Four (4) members from the Board, and led by one
independent director with expertise in accounting, finance, and auditing.

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. John Meinhold Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Vann Charles Chuon Member (Executive Director)

Authority and Main Responsibilities

. The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate any activity within its jurisdiction.
The Committee shall have unrestricted access to both the internal and external auditors and to all
employees of the Bank. The Committee may, with the approval of the Board, consult legal or other
professionals where they consider necessary to carry out their duties.

° The Audit Committee shall consider the appointment of external auditors, audit fee, and any questions
or registration or dismissal.

° The Committee shall review the financial reports and report to the Board.

o The Committee shall review the report of internal audits and monitor the performance of the internal
audit department on a regular basis.

° The Committee shall perform any other tasks as directed by the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months. The Audit Committee held Six
(6) meetings during 2024.
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The Board Risk Management Committee

Purpose

The Board Risk Management Committee actively manages the risk inherent in the Bank. In order to manage
risks, the Board defines and forms the Committee to oversee the risk profile and approve the risk management

framework.

In addition, the Committee shall take responsibilities by the Board's discretionary power to set risk tolerance,
approve frameworks, and policies and procedures for effective management of risks.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board Risk Management Committee is comprised of five (5) members from
the Board.

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. John Meinhold Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Phong Nguyen (Nguyen The Phong) Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Main Responsibilities

The Committee will recommend to the Board the parameters of the Bank's risk framework, monitoring the
alignment of risk profile with risk tolerance as defined. The Committee’s oversight responsibilities include, but
not limited to, the following elements:

Credit Risk

o Review and approve the framework for the management of credit risk in accordance with the Credit
Policies and Procedures manual.

. Review and monitor the risk profile, performance, and management of the credit portfolio.

. Review and develop appropriate credit risk policies.

. Review the Bank’s bad debt performance and provision for loan loss (general and specific provisionin

compliance with the NBC guidelines).
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Market Risk

. Review and approve the framework for the management of market risk.

° Review and monitor the Bank's market risk performance and exposure against limits.

° Review and develop appropriate market risk policies.

. Review and approve market risk limits including but not limited to Value at Risk Limits and Net Interest
Income at Risk Limits.

. Review structural interest rate risk positions for the Bank.

Liquidity Risk

° Review and approve the framework for the management of liquidity risk.

. Review and monitor the Bank’s liquidity position and requirements in consultation with the Assets and
Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) and the development of appropriate liquidity risk policies.

. Review and monitor the Bank’s funding plan and funding requirements.

Operational Risk

° Review and approve the framework for the management of operational risk.
. Review and monitor the performance of operational risk management and internal controls.
o Review the development and ongoing review of appropriate operational risk policies.

Compliance Risk

. Review the compliance risk processes that are in place to anticipate and effectively manage the impact
of regulatory change on the Bank's operations;

° Oversee compliance by the Bank with applicable laws, regulations, and regulatory requirements that
may impact the Bank's risk profile;

° Discuss with management and external auditors any correspondences with NBC, regulators or

government agencies, and any published reports that raise issues material to the Bank.

Reputation and Other Risks

° Review and monitor the performance of reputation risk management and controls.
° Review and monitor the performance of other risk types as appropriate.
Meetings

The Board Risk Management Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months. The Board
Risk Management Committee held Five (5) meetings in 2024.

The Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Purpose

The Committee members are appointed by the Board with the following purposes:

° Assist the Board to develop and administer a fair and transparent procedure for setting policy on the

remuneration of directors and senior management of the Bank, and determine their remuneration
packages.
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. Review selection and appointment practices of the Bank and the processes for evaluating the
performance of the Board, Board committees and executive management committee members.
Monitor and present recommendations regarding the Board governance issues.

Composition

At the end of 2024, the Committee is comprised of Three (3) members from the Board and the Management.

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)
Ms. Sophea Sealin Member (Corporate Secretary)

Authority and Main Responsibilities for Remuneration

o Make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the Bank for all remuneration
of directors and senior management, and establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

° Recommend to the Board the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including without limitation: base salaries, deferred compensation, stock options and
any benefits in kind, pension rights and incentive payments and any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the Chairman on the
remuneration of non-executive directors. The Committee may consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities, employment conditions elsewhere
in the group and the market, and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

° Review and approve performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.
° Review and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and senior management in

connection with any loss or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that such compensation
is determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise
fair and not excessive for the Bank.

. Review and approve compensation arrangements related to dismissal or removal of directors
for misconduct, and ensure that such arrangements are determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

. Provide advice to the Chairman of the Board regarding remuneration for supplementary duties and
liabilities of Directors who are also members of a Board Committee.

Authority and Main Responsibilities for Nomination
. Assess and enhance necessary and desirable competencies of the Board, its committees, and directors.

° Make recommendations on the size and composition of the Board, including succession plans to
enable an appropriate balance of skills, experience, and expertise to be maintained.
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° Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of directors.

. Review a process for evaluation of the performance of the Board.

° Identify candidates and review nominations for appointments of members of the Board and senior
management.

. Review succession planning for the Chairman, alternate chairman, CEO, EVP and senior management,
and talent review in the Bank.

. Monitor and make recommendations to the Board on board governance issues including board policies
and practices as necessary or appropriate to enable the Board to operate effectively and efficiently.

° Monitor developing trends, initiatives, or proposals in relation to board governance issues in Cambodia

and elsewhere in order to determine the extent to which such initiatives impact the Bank and make
recommendations to the Board on any changes to be implemented.

Meetings
The Board Remuneration and Nomination Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3)

months to assess matters as assigned by the Board. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held Five
(5) meetings in 2024.

The Board of Internal Control and Compliance Committee

Purpose

This Committee was established pursuant to the NBC's Prakas No. B7.010.172 Pro Kor, Internal Control of Bank
and Financial Institutions. The Committee’s functions are set up to ensure independent reporting to the Board
on the Bank's compliance performance in a timely and effective manner, making the decision-making process
efficient and responsive.

Composition

The Committee is comprised of Six (6) members including:

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. John Meinhold Vice Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Dr. Pung Carolyne Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Phong Nguyen (Nguyen The Phong) Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)

Authority and Responsibilities

° Prepare and present to the Board a written report on the compliance assessment and corresponding
recommendations reported by the Chief Compliance Officer.

. Take and keep minutes and other notes of quarterly and ad-hoc meetings.

. The membership of the Committee shall be updated from time to time, and approved by the Board.

. Report annually to the NBC according to the NBC's requirements.
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Meetings

This Board Internal Control and Compliance Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3)
months to assess matters as assigned by the Board. In 2024, the Committee held Six (6) meetings.

The Board New Activities and Products Committee

Purpose

This Committee was established pursuant to the NBC's Prakas No. B7.010.172 Pro Kor, Internal Control of
Bank and Financial Institutions. The Committee's functions are setup to ensure that all new products, activities,
market entries, business processes, and systems have fully assessed the control infrastructure, operational
risks, and economic value to the Bank are effectively and efficiently managed.

Composition

The Committee is comprised of Four (4) members including:

Name of Committee Member Position

Mr. Phong Nguyen (Nguyen The Phong) Chairman (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Member (Independent, Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon Member (Executive Director)

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Member (Executive Director)

Authority and Responsibilities

° Prepare and present to the Board a written report on the new products, activities, market entries and
business processes and systems of the Bank.

° Assist the Board in the oversight and eventual approval of the development and introduction of new
products and activities or variations thereof in accordance with the New Product Program.

. Monitor relevant market developments and make recommendations to the Board regarding the Bank's

products, activities, and services.
Meetings

This Board New Products and Activities Committee schedules meetings at least once every three (3) months
to assess matters as assigned by the Board. In 2024, the Committee held Five (5) meetings.
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Environment, Social, and
Governance (ESG) Disclosure

Canadia Bank recognizes its role and responsibility
in managing the impact of its operations on
Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG)
matters. We have taken proactive steps to assess
and manage ESG risks to ensure that our practices
align with the highest standards of sustainability and
responsibility.

In line with our commitment, Canadia Bank actively
supports the Royal Government of Cambodia's
national goals and initiatives on ESG, working to meet
our responsibilities and maintain accountability in
managing ESG-related risks. Our comprehensive Risk
Management Framework incorporates policies and
procedures designed to mitigate ESG risks, ensuring
that we address these challenges effectively and
ethically.

As part of our commitment to ethical governance,
Canadia Bank enforces a strict no-tolerance policy

towards corruption and bribery. Anti-corruption and
bribery policies are embedded in our Employee Code

ESG Highlights

1. ESG Committee

of Conduct, holding all staff to the highest standards
of integrity and transparency. Additionally, to mitigate
financial crimes, Canadia Bank has implemented
an Anti-Money Laundering (AML) and Counter
Financing of Terrorism (CFT) policy, which includes a
prohibited business list, ensuring that we only engage
with partners who align with our ethical and legal
standards.

We are also proud to champion gender equality and
women's leadership within the Bank, with women
employees accounting for 33.5% of our total key
management personnel, reflecting our commitment
to a diverse and inclusive workplace.

Our dedication to social responsibility extends to
the well-being of our employees, the communities
we serve, and the ethical practices across our value
chain. This includes ensuring the ongoing health,
safety, and overall well-being of our employees, and
supporting sustainable community initiatives that
contribute to long-term social impact.

In February 2024, Canadia Bank established an ESG Committee to focus on managing the Bank's overall ESG
risks. This Committee operates under the guidance of the Executive Risk and Compliance Committee, which
reports directly to the Board Risk Management Committee.

2. Green Financing Program (GFP)

Launched in March 2023, the Green Financing Program is Canadia Bank's initiative designed to provide financial
support to businesses in environmentally friendly sectors, offering them favorable terms and conditions. The

sectors identified for green financing include:
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Renewal Energy Energy Efficiency

Certified Green Building

Green Transportation

3. Women Entrepreneurs Guarantee Scheme

In collaboration with Credit Guarantee Corporation of Cambodia (CGCC), Canadia Bank has launched the
Women Entrepreneurs Guarantee Scheme to provide financial support to women entrepreneurs, empowering
them to grow and sustain their businesses. This initiative is a key part of our commitment to fostering economic
inclusion and supporting women in business.

4. Financial Literacy

Canadia Bank is committed to improving financial literacy across Cambodia. Our goal is to work together with
customers, partners, and stakeholders from various sectors to develop and execute a comprehensive strategy
that enhances financial literacy. Moving forward, we will continue our efforts to safeguard the customers and
protect them from financial harm.

In 2024, we participated in several financial literacy campaigns led by the National Bank of Cambodia and the
Association of Banks in Cambodia. Additionally, we conducted workshops and training sessions at our smart
branches to educate consumers on financial literacy, scam prevention, and sustainable financing, highlighting
our commitment to empowering our customers with essential financial knowledge.
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Canadia Bank
Cares

Canadia Bank has long championed Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) through our Canadia Bank Cares
initiatives, supporting the Bank’s strategic mission to give back to the community. This commitment aligns
with the National Bank of Cambodia’'s National Financial Inclusion Strategy 2019-2025, which promotes
financial literacy and inclusion nationwide. Guided by our CSR pillars—Environment, Social and Governance
(ESG); Customers and Community; Financial Literacy and Inclusion; and Culture, Arts, and Sports—we remain
dedicated to fostering a sustainable, inclusive, and prosperous future for Cambodia.

Environmental, Social, And Governance (ESG)

Driving Positive Change for a Sustainable and Responsible Future

Canadia Bank Cares: Good For You and Me

The "Good for You and Me" initiative reflects our ongoing commitment to giving back to society through
sustainable and meaningful action. As part of our annual ESG activities, this activity promotes a circular
economic model by recycling secondhand and pre-loved items. Our Bank and group companies' staff
generously donated essential goods, pre-loved items, and non-perishable food. These donations contributed
to the livelihoods of the cyclo elders under the care of the Cambodia Cyclo Association (CCA), helping uplift
and empower a valued segment of our community.

Phnom Penh: A City We Share, A Future We Build
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Phnom Penh is more than just the capital — it's our home. Every street, park, river, and shared space reflects
the spirit of our community. Canadia Bank proudly supports the Ministry of Environment's “Clean Cambodia,
Khmer Can Do" campaign, working together to clean and protect our city and river. Through the “Phnom Penh;
Our City; Our Home" initiatives and our contribution to the River Ocean Cleanup project, we're investing in a
cleaner, greener city, shaping a healthier future for all.



Stepping Towards a Landmine-Free Cambodia
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Canadia Bank takes pride in supporting the Royal Government of Cambodia (RGC) on the mine-free agenda
and activities and making strides toward Cambodia’s goal of becoming mine-free, reaffirming our commitment
to creating safer, thriving communities.

Promoting Tourism at Coastal Areas
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Canadia Bank has continuously pledged its support to
the annual Sea Festival 2024, held in Kampot province,
showcasing the beauty and heritage of Cambodia's
coastal areas. With the theme “Celebrating Heritage
and Sustainability of Coastal Areas,” this festival
emphasized the importance of preserving these
special places, championing a future where tourism
thrives in harmony with nature, and ensuring that
Kampot's stunning coastal landscapes endure for
generations to come.

Enhancing Urban Greenery Through Canadia
Garden

Completed in 2019, Canadia Garden is a green oasis
nestled beside Canadia Tower, offering a peaceful
escape from the bustling city. This vibrant space
provides a serene environment for Canadia Bank
employees and the public, promoting physical and
mental well-being, providing space for community
engagement and relaxation, and fostering a
connection with nature in the heart of Phnom Penh.

Planting Trees for a Greener Future

Our commitment to supporting the Ministry of
Environment's “Plant 1 Million Trees in a Year”
campaign remains steadfast. We are dedicated
to protecting nature, enhancing urban greenery,
and giving back to society through partnering
with initiatives such as the Association of Banks in
Cambodia’'s Tree Planting and School Renovation
activities and OCIC's Arbor Day Tree Planting.
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Canadia Bank Cares For Customers And Community

Nurturing Growth, Trust, and Success for Our Customers and Society

Promoting Children's Healthcare

Canadia Bank is deeply committed to promoting children's well-being and lifestyle through various initiatives.
Employees make regular monthly donations to the "Kantha Bopha Children's Hospital" to support its daily
operations. Additionally, the Bank makes annual contributions to Smile Cambodia's life-changing surgical
missions that address conditions such as microtia, cleft lip or palate, and facial deformities in patients across

selected cities and provinces.
Empowering Futures Through Education
el L

L CE TR ol
golitniliod leimugicinphemEce giorkes

At Canadia Bank, we believe education is the key
to transforming lives and should be accessible to
all. Guided by this belief, we've supported various
initiatives aimed at promoting financial literacy and
education, among others the Summer Youth Camp
2024 in Siem Reap and the National Youth Debate
2024 in Phnom Penh, both organized by the Ministry
of Education, Youth, and Sport (MoEYS). These
events have contributed to the youth developing
critical thinking, communication, and leadership
skills, reinforcing our commitment to empowering
the next generation. Furthermore, we also supported
the Kid Festival Contest, organized by the Ministry of
Information, which empowered children by providing
age-appropriate entertainment programs that foster
essential knowledge and education in etiquette,
virtue, and morality.

Supporting Humanitarian Efforts for a Stronger
Community

Through our ongoing efforts, we proudly supported
Red Cross Cambodia, contributed to Branch Centers
and the Deaf Development Program (DDP) and
"Together For 100 Families" project of PUC Executive
Leadership Institute (ELI), and partnered with the
Girl Guides Association of Cambodia on the "Old
You, New Me" project. These initiatives supported
causes such as humanitarian relief, empowering
the deaf community, and providing assistance to
vulnerable families and young women, helping uplift
and empower those in need.
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Financial Literacy and Inclusion

Creating Opportunities for a Financially Inclusive Society

As part of Canadia Bank's commitment to supporting the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC)'s National
Financial Inclusion Strategy 2019-2025, we have actively initiated various workshops and training programs
in cities and provinces. Through the programs endorsed by the NBC and the Association of Banks in Cambodia
(ABC), we contribute to strengthen financial inclusion and literacy.

Strengthening Community’s Safe Finance and Financial Inclusion
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Canadia Bank has taken a significant step in supporting NBC's commitment of spreading awareness of scams,
financial literacy and education in underprivileged communities via book series publications. Additionally,
we are also a supporter of the MoEYS and NBC's “Financial Education Programmes in Schools" initiative to
strengthen financial literacy among the youths.

Empowering Communities with Financial Education

Canadia Bank offers regular workshops and training programs at our smart branches. These initiatives are
designed to equip our customers and the broader community with crucial knowledge on financial literacy,
guidance on accessing the right financing solutions for businesses, scam awareness and prevention, and
more. Our goal is to help in customer education so individuals and businesses can make conscious financial
decisions.



3 3 CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Encouraging Community's Saving Habit

Saving is important to secure the future's financial
stability. Canadia Bank always takes part in supporting
the ASEAN Savings Day, an annual event organized
by National Bank of Cambodia, that aims to promote
the culture of savings for individuals and families in
Cambodia. Held in Kampong Speu, this event was
dedicated to encouraging a savings culture, offering
practical tips on effective financial management,
and promoting financial inclusion for underserved
communities.

Exploring the Evolution of Cambodia’s Economy and National Currency
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Canadia Bank took a meaningful step toward deepening its appreciation of Cambodia’s national currency by
organizing a visit to the Preah Srey Icanavarman Museum (SOSORO Museum) for its management and staff.
This visit provided valuable insights into the country’'s economic history and offered a captivating journey
through Cambodia’s financial evolution, highlighting how the national currency has reflected the country's
political and economic transformations. To further support financial education, the Bank signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with the SOSORO Museum and the Association of Banks in Cambodia, enabling
more high school student visits aimed at enriching their understanding of the nation's financial heritage.

Culture, Arts, And Sports

Preserving Khmer heritage and promoting sports for community engagement and well-being

Bringing Home the Ancient Artifacts

Canadia Bank is proud to continuously support the Ministry of Culture and Fine Arts in repatriating stolen
antiquities to Cambodia. Our donation aids in returning invaluable artifacts from museums abroad, reconnecting
our rich past with the present. In addition, we're thrilled to contribute to the production of a documentary film
that captures the return journey of the lost treasures coming home. This film will serve as a lasting testament to
Cambodia's history, ensuring that future generations can learn from and cherish our cultural heritage.



Promoting Community Well-being Through Sports

CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024

34

-

Health is a privilege, and we believe in fostering not only financial well-being but also physical health. In addition
to promoting healthy financial habits among our staff and customers, we actively encourage physical wellness
through sports and community events. We are proud to have contributed to and participated in several sports
initiatives, including Samdech Techo Hun Sen's Friendship Soccer Charity Event, Chroy Changvar Run for
Cambodian Children, ABC's Annual Bankers' Cycling 2024, and the Sovannaphum Life Assurance's Family Fun
Bike supporting Cambodian children. Through these efforts, we aim to inspire healthy lifestyles and contribute

to the well-being of our community.

Honoring Cambodia’s Timeless Legacy

To mark the 32nd anniversary of Angkor Wat's
inclusion in the UNESCO World Heritage List,
Canadia Bank proudly supported the 5th Night of
Remembrance in Siem Reap. This event celebrated
the historical, cultural, and artistic magnificence of
our heritage, reminding us of the timeless legacy that
continues to inspire and connect us to our roots.

Celebrating Cambodia: A Tribute to the Khmer
Riel and Our Cultural Heritage

Canadia Bank takes great pride in celebrating

Cambodia's rich heritage and the enduring
significance of the Khmer Riel. Our commitment
to preserving and promoting our cultural identity
is demonstrated through our active support of the
"Celebrating Cambodia” national event, highlighting
Cambodia’'s history, artistry, and the spirit of unity,
honoring the vibrant traditions that shape our nation.
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2024 at
a Glance

$8.6B g SO
$525M oo 2
$84.6M e 28
4,000+ croioyes 388
426 R

68

Total Branches and
Banking Offices

3 Branches

Foreign Subsidiary
Lao PDR
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Awards &
Recognition
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. Digital Banking in 2024 from General Department of
by The Digital Banker - . . .
by Asian Business Review Taxation
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Financial
Highlights

Year-ended 31 December 2024

476 456 424 415

Gross Revenue 517

Net Profit 78 97 129 125 131
Total Assets 8,622 7,971 7,634 7,647 7,074
Shareholders' Equity 1,357 1,278 1182 978 854
Total Loans and Advances (Net) 5,082 4,850 4,818 4,739 4,283
Total Deposits 6,941 6,220 5,976 6,121 5,608
Earnings per Share (US$) 0.10 013 0.20 0.22 0.27
Net Worth 1,266 1,259 1170 994 947
Return on Shareholders' Equity (ROE) 5.78% 7.57% 10.90% 12.82% 15.28%
Return on Assets 0.91% 1.21% 1.69% 1.64% 1.85%
Interest Margin to Gross Income 35.86% 41.53% 48.39% 47.83% 50.02%
Cost to Income Ratio 38.86% 34.94% 28.12% 27.89% 29.68%
Gross Loans to Deposits 76.42% 80.05% 82.42% 78.24% 77.75%
Solvency Ratio 22.58% 22.89% 22.53% 20.29% 21.18%
Liquidy Coverage Ratio (LCR) 171.71% 135.69% 133.21% 125.09% 136.00%

Note: These figures pertained to the operations of Canadia Bank Plc. only and are not consolidated
with its Subsidiaries.
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Report of The Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors (the Directors) hereby submits their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank) and its subsidiaries (together the Group) and the separate
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Canadia Bank Plc.

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law on Commercial Enterprises
and under the supervision of the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC or the central bank), pursuant to the Law on
Banking and Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the Banking Licence No. 05 issued by
the NBC, since 1991. The Bank's licence was renewed for an indefinite period following the NBC's Prakas No.
B7-06-207, dated 13 September 2006.

Holding Company

The holding company of the Group is Canadia Investment Holding Plc. (CIHP), a public limited company
incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Bank consist of operations of core banking business and provisions of related
financial services through the Bank's head office and various branches in Phnom Penh and in provinces.

There was no significant change in the nature of these principal activities during the year.
The Subsidiaries

In February 2010, Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. (CNS) (formerly Cana Securities Ltd.) was incorporated in
Cambodia as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank. CNS received its securities underwriting licence from
the Securities and Exchange Regulator of Cambodia (SERC) on 20 October 2010. On 1 July 2024, Ministry of
Commerce approved the change of its name to Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. The principal activities of the CNS
are to provide securities-related services; these include, but are not limited to, securities underwriting, dealing,
brokerage, and investment related services.

In August 2015, the Bank and CIHP together incorporated Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL) in Lao People's
Democratic Republic (P.D.R) and respectively own 77% and 23% (2023: 68% and 32%) of the equity interest
of CBL. The Bank has control over CBL and the rights to govern financial and operating policies of CBL. CBL
received its banking license from the Bank of Lao P.D.R on 14 August 2015. The principal activities of CBL are
to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services.

Results of Operation

The results of financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated and
separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Dividends

There was dividend of US$ 50,000,000 appropriated from the retained earnings during the year (2023:
US$ 100,000,000) then reinvested in share capital, as disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements.

Share Capital
The Bank increased its share capital from US$ 750,000,000 to US$ 800,000,000 during the year.
Bad and Doubtful Loans and Advances

Before the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank were drawn up, the
Directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad
loans and advances or making of allowance for impairment losses, and satisfied themselves that all known
bad loans and advances had been written off and that adequate loss allowance has been made for bad and
doubtful loans and advances.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances
which would render the amount written off for bad loans and advances or the amount of the allowance for
impairment losses in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank inadequate
to any material extent.

Assets

Before the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank were prepared, the
Directors took reasonable steps to ensure that any assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary
course of business, at their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and the Bank, have been
written down to an amount which they might be expected to realise.

At the date of this report and based on the best of knowledge, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances
which would render the values attributed to the assets in the consolidated and separate financial statements of
the Group and the Bank misleading in any material respect.

Contingent and Other Liabilities

At the date of this report, there is:

(a) no charge on the assets of the Group and the Bank which has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilities of any other person, or
(b) no contingent liability in respect of the Group and the Bank that has arisen since the end of the financial

year other than in the ordinary course of banking business.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and the Bank has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the
Directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and the Bank to meet its obligations as and
when they fall due.

Change of Circumstances
At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt with in this

report or the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank, which would render
any amount stated in the consolidated and separate financial statements misleading.
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Items of Unusual Nature

The financial performance of the Group and the Bank for the financial year was not, in the opinion of the
Directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction, or event of a material and unusual nature. There has
not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction,
or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors, to affect substantially the financial
performance of the Group and the Bank for the current financial year in which this report is made.

The Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors holding office during the year and as at the date of this report are:

Lok Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se Chairman

Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Mr. Vann Charles Chuon Executive Director

Dr. Pung Carolyne Executive Director

Mr. Chen Lee Yiaw Hui Executive Director

Mr. Yee Con Long Executive Director

Mr. Leow Ming Fong Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Peter Michael Buerger Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. John Meinhold Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Phong Nguyen (Nguyen The Phong) Independent, Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lim Socheat Non-Executive Director

Directors' Responsibilities In Respect of The Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for ascertaining that the consolidated and separate financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2024 and
of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Cambodian
International Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRS).

In preparing these consolidated and separate financial statements, the Directors are required to:

i) adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates and then apply them consistently;

ii) comply with the disclosure requirements of CIFRS or, if there have been any departures in the
interest of fair presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed, explained, and quantified in the
consolidated and separate financial statements;

iii) maintain adequate accounting records and an effective system of internal controls;

iv) prepare the consolidated and separate financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to assume that the Group and the Bank will continue operations in the foreseeable future;
and
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V) effectively control and direct the Group and the Bank in all material decisions affecting its operations
and performance and ascertain that such have been properly reflected in the consolidated and
separate financial statements.

The Directors confirm that the Group and the Bank have complied with the above requirements in preparing
the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Approval of The Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements, together with the notes thereto, which
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2024
and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group and the Bank for the year then ended in accordance
with the Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards, were approved by the Board of Directors.

Signed in accordance with an approval of the Board of Directors.

Lok Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Kheav Se Mr. Raymond Sia Say Guan
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
26 March 2025
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Independent
Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of the Canadia Bank Plc.

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements and the separate financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank) and its subsidiaries
(the Group) and the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2024, and their consolidated
and separate financial performance and their consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Cambodian International Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRS).

What we have audited

The Bank And The Group's financial statements comprise:

o The consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,

o The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
. The consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

. The consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

. The separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

. The separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. The separate statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o The separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

o The notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, which include material accounting

policy information and other explanatory information.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Cambodian International Standards on Auditing (CISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements of the Kampuchea
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Auditors’ Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants and
Auditors (KICPAA Code) that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
in Cambodia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the
ethical requirements of the KICPAA Code.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this
auditor's report are the Directors' report and supplementary financial information required by the National Bank
of Cambodia but does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate
financial statements in accordance with CIFRS, and for such internal control as the management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing
the Group's and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's and the Bank's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CISAs will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design, and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's and the Bank's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Bank'’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024 46

. Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and review of the
audit work performed for the purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Cambodia) Ltd.

By Kuy Lim
Partner

Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia
27 March 2025
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EisinE =g - (80,536) - (40,332)
rei8m (5,965,061) (104,820) (3,627,747)
SR 78,619,335 239,524 98,623,990 365,012
FUEERRERS -
SEMEE 83,280,113 339,034 100,627,886 413,580
JEFE IR 1,304,283 5,310 1,623,851 6,674

REIRTERREDS ¢

EEFBEE 77,742,910 235,956 97,871,533 361,919
FEPEHIRER 876,425 3,568 752,457 3,093

MBI A S HANE B IS IRRAEMED -
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DNEEER1T
BMRERER

2024F12B31H
T
fast £ EELL: 25 EELL
BETBZRERE
EEMESIRE 36.a 517,118,136 2,105,188 43,400,469 178,376
BN Z R 2 457,354,263 1,861,889 416,166,134 1,710,443
T ZFE (260,742,142) (1,061,481) (220,946,981) (908,092)
L ATERIER 21 (20,680,524) (84,190) (25,976,927) (106,765)
YETEF 20 (452,506) (1,842) (889,634) (3,656)

692,597,227 2,819,564 211,753,061

BREREZIRERE
FHERRES (18,115,074) (73,746) (10,007,539) (41,131)
TEERE (134,124,236) (546,020) (8,966,456) (36,852)
X T BFRSEIE 12,061 49 88,212 363
BEREYE (492,516) (2,005) (1184,267) (4,867)
EEYENRE (10,510,260) (42,787) (8,305,903) (34,137)
BEETEE (1,384,904) (5,638) (129,440) (532)
HEYEN R IBFTSERIE 43,923 179 762,017 3132
HMEEINETS (5,688,390) (23,157) (3,389,212) (13,930)
R EEEFTARE (170,259,396) (693,125) (31,132,588)
RLEEENZIRERE

T AR A SR P S AR IR 26 50,000,000 200,000 100,000,000 400,000
B REMAIRITRE 26 (50,000,000) (200,000) (100,000,000) (400,000)
BEFRSIE 19 105,912,798 431,171 97,161,265 399,333
1EiBfE= 19 (202,423,102) (824,064) (101,076,691) (415,425)
IRAREFSPRISFRIE 23 - - 13,000,000 53,430
(BB IR AETS 23 (51,000,000) (207,621) (22,000,000) (90,420)
HENTNTIEER 12 (2,566,901) (10,450) (7,765,792) (31,917)
FE EREN RIS (150,077,205) (610,964) (20,681,218)
REROERSIBINFERE 372,260,626 1,515,475 159,939,255 657,353
FVIREROEIREEREE 1,939,450,793 7,922,656 1,779,511,538 7,326,249
GRRE =R - (133,493) - (60,946)

FRIRERNER SR 2,311,711,419 9,304,638 1,939,450,793 7,922,656

FREREFTHBIAEBINEBUAREMME (FE1) MEBERREMREME -
FFINERMEFIEEMMEE (Bi112) FRAERCRREENEE -
MBI A S M E RIS IRREMED -
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DNEEER1T
BEREERER

2024F12H31H

222 ] 208 |

[LLE e EEEL e EEEL

aE
Be 4 318,814,322 1,283,228 324,915,608 1,327,280
FEREMIRTIRIE 5 1,093,402,177 4,400,944 963,433,866 3,935,627
FR b RSRITERIA 6 1,067,038,985 4,294,832 949,605,688 3,879,139
EBE B NFER 7 5,082,966,871 20,458,942 4,849,930,402 19,811,966
BEEE 8 191,706,485 771,619 59,647,465 243,660
R TR E TR RN 9 517,958,682 2,084,784 474,088,326 1,936,651
#@%ﬂ] Eﬁ{ﬁ 10 164,976,557 664,031 165,999,566 678,108
#@%}Qﬁ " 11,193,771 45,055 10,701,255 43,715
1@5@ ﬁéiﬁé 12 25,778,389 103,758 28,198,698 115,192
ISR 13 1,986,292 7,995 1,158,227 4,731
?ﬁié%@a 14 49,005,880 197,249 39,005,880 159,339
,E\Zﬁi’l,éé 16 97,023,740 390,521 103,988,588 424,793

8,621,852,151

34,702,958

7,970,673,569

BERER

afE

HAnSB TS Bz 17 273,554,459 1,101,057 374,844,052 1,531,238
EEEHR 18 6,667,054,993 26,834,896 5,844,671,211 23,875,482
EEN 19 192,503,664 774,827 291,685,532 1,191,535
mEaE 12 20,026,586 80,607 21,665,971 88,505
2TEF 20 7,712,937 31,045 7,719,089 31,532
KEBFFEMEE 21 14,328,165 57,671 18,912,423 77,257
EIFFERaE— 9 15 9,736,892 39,191 6,796,814 27,765
Hine s 22 49,781,474 200,374 44,396,670 181,361
RABAETE 23 30,242,550 121726 81,548,020 333124
e (Ema 7,264,941,720 29,241,394  6,692,239,782 27,337,799
W

B 24 800,000,000 3,200,000 750,000,000 3,000,000
HEE 25 299,871,693 1,176,918 222,328,907 941,558
RERER 257,038,738 1,084,646 306,104,880 1,280,844

T AR AR

BEREDEER

MBI A S HAE B TFRAR VAN D -

1,356,910,431

8,621,852,151

5,461,564

34,702,958

1,278,433,787

7,970,673,569

5,222,402
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DNEEER1T
ERRnRMEMLGRS

2024F12H31H
et ET BERE EI BERE
FBUIA 27 495,887.141 2,018,757 458,720,234 1,885,340
MEXZH 27 (310,563,267) (1,264,303) (260,962,289) (1,072,555)
EZISUS N 185,323,874 754,454 197,757,945
FREEBRETWA 28 13,812,400 56,230 12,548,952 51,576
FHEELESYE 28 (2,520,324) (10,260) (2129,751) (8,753)
[BFEERESIWA 28 11,292,076 45,970 10,419,201 42,823
Heh& A 29 7,036,938 28,647 4,923,295 20,235
a5 203,652,888 829,071 213,100,441
AZEH 30 (45,830,520) (186,576) (43,038,368) (176,888)
IR K igheH 25 A 31 (10,814,982) (44,028) (10,249,541) (42,126)
Hh &R 32 (22,490,285) (91,558) (21,170,018) (87,009)
(79,135,787) (322,162) (74,457,927)
EEER 124,517,101 506,909 138,642,514
T ERERE 33 (28,001,296) (113,993) (22,324,798) (91,755)
B REE 96,515,805 392,916 116,317,716 478,065
FR8iRnE R 34 (18,039,161) (73,437) (19,561,828) (80,399)
F EEFIE 78,476,644 319,479 96,755,888
Hitn4z a8
AEESEEERNIER
ElinE s - (80,317) - (40,232)
FEHMZSIE - (80,317) - (40,232)
FRSIBMEEE 78,476,644 239,162 96,755,888
TSRS -
IRITEREE 78,476,644 319,479 96,755,888 397,666

REIRTEEREREDS ¢
IRITERESE 78,476,644 239,162 96,755,888 357,434

MBI A S M EBM IS IRREMED
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2024%F12831H

2024 ] 2023 |

& E BERE E BERE

BETHMZRSRE
B ETEIN S 36.a 495,180,105 2,015,877 58,167,804 239,069
WRER Z FI R 453,596,414 1,846,591 412,966,801 1,697,294
XA ZFE (260,958,711) (1,062,363) (221,202,420) (909,142)
SASFRSH 21 (19,683,341) (80,131) (25,899,496) (106,447)
T8 T1EF 20 (452,508) (1,842) (889,634) (3,656)

667,681,961

2,718,132

223,143,055

REFIHZRERE

FHERRES (5,000,000) (20,355) (10,000,000) (41,100
ZRESIRE (134,121,122) (546,007) (8,820,341) (36,252)
XATREFNE] (10,000,000) (40,710) - -
BEREME (492,516) (2,005) (1184,267) (4,867)
EEYEMRE (6,080,677) (24,754) (8,285,402) (34,053)
BERTEE (1,384,904) (5,638) (129,440) (532)
HEMRNRIBPASIRIA 43,923 179 762,017 3132

(157,035,296)

(639,290)

(27,657,433)

MEFHZRERE

TR R R TS IE 26 50,000,000 200,000 100,000,000 400,000
B IR ELARITIRE 26 (50,000,000) (200,000) (100,000,000) (400,000)
BEFSIIE 19 105,912,798 431,171 97,161,265 399,333
BIBIE 19 (202,391,909) (823,937 (101,057,008) (415,344)
IRAREF TS FIE 23 - - 13,000,000 53,430
BB R ARETS 23 (51,000,000) (207,621) (22,000,000) (90,420)
AENENIEESR 12 (2,566,901) (10,450) (7,765,792) (31,917)
REEEFTARE (150,046,012) (610,837) (20,661,535)
RERNOEREIEINFEE 360,600,653 1,468,005 174,824,087 718,528
FRERNERTHEE 1,943,704,238 7,940,033 1,768,880,151 7,282,479
ERRE T - (133,210) - (60,974)

FRRERNOEREERE

2,304,304,891

9,274,828 1,943,704,238

FRREREFEEAMMEE (BEEN) FRESERREMBIE
FFRERMEESTEEMMEE (Be112) FEBERERAREENGE -
MBI A S M E BT IS RRAEMED -
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CANADIA BANKPLC.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

Notes Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Assets
Cash on hand 4 319,224,956 1,284,880 325,482,042 1,329,594
Deposits and placements with other banks 5 1,101,059,528 4,431,765 966,049,780 3,946,313
Deposits and placements with the Central Bank 6 1,078,249,621 4,339,955 960,210,241 3,922,459
Loans and advances to customers 7 5,098,696,185 20,522,252  4,866,069,063 19,877,892
Investment securities 8 196,746,307 791,904 65,024,487 265,625
Statutory deposits with the Central Bank 9 533,213,147 2,146,183 475,337,283 1,941,753
Property and equipment 10 169,387,936 681,786 165,953,717 677,921
Investment properties 1" 11,193,771 45,055 10,701,255 43,715
Right-of-use assets 12 25,778,389 103,758 28,198,698 115,192
Intangible assets 13 1,987,351 7,999 1,159,287 4,736
Other assets 16 97,083,449 390,761 107,681,919 439,881
Total assets 8,632,620,640 34,746,298 7,971,867,772 32,565,081
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Deposits from other banks and financial institutions 17 273,529,886 1,100,958 374,819,850 1,531,139
Deposits from customers 18 6,673,102,311 26,859,237 5,841,618,173 23,863,010
Borrowings 19 192,516,372 774,878 291,733,252 1,191,730
Lease liabilities 12 20,026,586 80,607 21,665,971 88,505
Employee benefits 20 7,735,871 31137 7,740,285 31,619
Current income tax liability 21 14,753,370 59,382 18,979,609 77,532
Deferred tax liabilities - net 15 9,708,224 39,076 6,768,209 27,648
Other liabilities 22 50,405,002 202,880 45,013,270 183,881
Subordinated debts 23 30,242,550 121,726 81,548,020 333124

Total liabilities

7,272,020,172

29,269,881

6,689,886,639

27,328,188

Equity

Share capital 24 800,000,000 3,200,000 750,000,000 3,000,000
Reserves 25 284,328,752 1,113,865 212,323,169 900,668
Retained earnings 266,107,194 1,121,640 310,331,419 1,298,126
Attributable to owners 1,350,435,946 5,435,505 1,272,654,588 5,198,794
Non-controlling interests 10,164,522 40,912 9,326,545 38,099

Total liabilities and equity

1,360,600,468

8,632,620,640

5,476,417

34,746,298

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

1,281,981,133

7,971,867,772

5,236,893
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Consolidated Statement Of Profit Or Loss And Other Comprehensive

Income
For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes us$ Million KHR us$ Million KHR
Interest income 27 499,633,832 2,034,009 462,151,322 1,899,442
Interest expense 27 (310,283,543) (1,263,164) (260,694,525) (1,071,454)
Net interest income 189,350,289 770,845 201,456,797
Fee and commission income 28 13,927,174 56,698 12,624,933 51,888
Fee and commission expense 28 (2,531,666) (10,306) (2,141,096) (8,800)
Net fee and commission income 28 11,395,508 46,392 10,483,837 43,088
Other operating income 29 11,419,902 46,490 7,050,508 28,978
Total operating income 212,165,699 863,727 218,991,142
Personnel expenses 30 (46,824,897) (190,624) (43,921,076) (180,516)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 31 (10,837,918) (44,121) (10,287,531) (42,282)
Other operating expenses 32 (23,035,374) (93,777) (21,492173) (88,333)
Total operating expenses (80,698,189) (328,522) (75,700,780)
Operating profit before impairment 131,467,510 535,205 143,290,362
Impairment losses on financial instruments 33 (27,488,814) (111,907) (21,387,857) (87,904)
Profit before income tax 103,978,696 423,298 121,902,505 501,019
Income tax expense 34 (19,394,300) (78,954) (19,650,768) (80,765)
Profit for the year 84,584,396 344,344 102,251,737 420,254

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign operation translation (5,637,809) (22,952) (3,346,106) (13,752)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Changes in the fair value of equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income

Currency translation difference - (80,536) - (40,332)
lOther comprehensive losses for the year (5,965,061) (104,820) (3,627,747)

8 (327,252) (1,332) (281,641) (1.158)

Total comprehensive income for the year 78,619,335 98,623,990

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of the Group 83,280,113 339,034 100,627,886 413,580
Non-controlling interests 1,304,283 5,310 1,623,851 6,674

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Group 77,742,910 235,956 97,871,533 361,919
Non-controlling interests 876,425 3,568 752,457 3,093

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 36.a 517,118,136 2,105,188 43,400,469 178,376
Interest received 457,354,263 1,861,889 416,166,134 1,710,443
Interest paid (260,742,142) (1,061,481) (220,946,981) (908,092)
Income tax paid 21 (20,680,524) (84,190) (25,976,927) (106,765)
Payment of employee benefits 20 (452,506) (1,842) (889,634) (3,656)

ICash generated from operating activities 692,597,227 2,819,564 211,753,061

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital guarantee deposits (18,115,074) (73,746) (10,007,539) (41131)
Payments for investment in securities (134,124,236) (546,020) (8,966,456) (36,852)
Proceeds from equity instrument 12,061 49 88,212 363
Purchases of investment properties (492,516) (2,005) (1184,267) (4,867)
Purchases of property and equipment (10,510,260) (42,787) (8,305,903) (34137)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,384,904) (5,638) (129,440) (532)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 43,923 179 762,017 3132
Foreign operation translation (5,688,390) (23157) (3,389,212) (13,930)

ICash used in investing activities (170,259,396) (693,125) (31,132,588)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 26 50,000,000 200,000 100,000,000 400,000
Dividends paid to the Bank's shareholders 26 (50,000,000) (200,000) (100,000,000) (400,000)
Proceeds from borrowings 19 105,912,798 431171 97,161,265 399,333
Repayments of borrowings 19 (202,423,102) (824,064) (101,076,691) (415,425)
Proceeds from subordinated debts 23 - - 13,000,000 53,430
Repayments of subordinated debts 23 (51,000,000) (207,621) (22,000,000) (90,420)
Principal elements on lease payments 12 (2,566,901) (10,450) (7,765,792) (31,917)

ICash used in financing activities (150,077,205) (610,964) (20,681,218)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 372,260,626 1,515,475 159,939,255
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,939,450,793 7,922,656 1,779,511,538 7,326,249
Currency translation differences - (133,493) - (60,946)

ICash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,311,711,419 9,304,638 1,939,450,793 7,922,656

Non-cash investing activities are foreign operation translation, and disclosed in other note are investment properties (Note 11).
Non-cash financing activities disclosed in other note is the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (Note 12).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Separate Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2024

Notes (VELS Million KHR uss$ Million KHR

Assets

Cashonhand 4 318,814,322 1,283,228 324,915,608 1,327,280
Deposits and placements with other banks 1,093,402,177 4,400,944 963,433,866 3,935,627
E;?ISS“S and placements with the central 6 1,067,038,985 4,294,832 949,605,688 3,879,139
Loans and advances to customers 7 5,082,966,871 20,458,942 4,849,930,402 19,811,966
Investment securities 191,706,485 771,619 59,647,465 243,660
Statutory deposits with the central bank 9 517,958,682 2,084,784 474,088,326 1,936,651
Property and equipment 10 164,976,557 664,031 165,999,566 678,108
Investment properties " 11,193,771 45,055 10,701,255 43,715
Right-of-use assets 12 25,778,389 103,758 28,198,698 115,192
Intangible assets 13 1,986,292 7,995 1158,227 4,731
Investment in subsidiaries 14 49,005,880 197,249 39,005,880 159,339
Other assets 16 97,023,740 390,521 103,988,588 424,793

8,621,852,151

34,702,958

7,970,673,569

32,560,201

Liabilities and equity

Liabilities

Deposts from other banks and!financie! 17 273,554,459 1,101,067 374,844,052 1,531,238
Deposits from customers 18 6,667,054,993 26,834,896 5,844,671,211 23,875,482
Borrowings 19 192,503,664 774,827 291,685,532 1,191,535
Lease liabilities 12 20,026,586 80,607 21,665,971 88,505
Employee benefits 20 7,712,937 31,045 7,719,089 31,632
Current income tax liability 21 14,328,165 57,671 18,912,423 77,257
Deferred tax liabilities - net 15 9,736,892 39,191 6,796,814 27,765
Other liabilities 22 49,781,474 200,374 44,396,670 181,361
Subordinated debts 23 30,242,550 121,726 81,548,020 333124

7,264,941,720

29,241,394

6,692,239,782

27,337,799

Equity

Share capital 24 800,000,000 3,200,000 750,000,000 3,000,000
Reserves 25 299,871,693 1176,918 222,328,907 941,558
Retained earnings 257,038,738 1,084,646 306,104,880 1,280,844

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.

1,356,910,431

8,621,852,151

5,461,564

34,702,958

1,278,433,787

7,970,673,569

32,560,201
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes uss Million KHR uUs$ Million KHR
Interest income 27 495,887,141 2,018,757 458,720,234 1,885,340
Interest expense 27 (310,563,267) (1,264,303) (260,962,289) (1,072,555)

Net interest income 185,323,874 197,757,945

Fee and commission income 28 13,812,400 56,230 12,548,952 51,576

Fee and commission expense 28 (2,520,324) (10,260) (2,129,751) (8,753)
Net fee and commission income 11,292,076 10,419,201

Other operating income 29 7,036,938 28,647 4,923,295 20,235
Total operating income 203,652,888 829,071 213,100,441

Personnel expenses 30 (45,830,520) (186,576) (43,038,368) (176,888)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 31 (10,814,982) (44,028) (10,249,541) (42,126)
Other operating expenses 32 (22,490,285) (91,558) (21,1770,018) (87,009)
Total operating expenses (79,135,787) (322,162) (74,457,927)

Operating profit before impairment 124,517,101 138,642,514

Impairment losses on financial instruments 33 (28,001,296) (113,993) (22,324,798) (91,755)
Profit before income tax 96,515,805 392,916 116,317,716 478,065
Income tax expense 34 (18,039,161) (73,437) (19,561,828) (80,399)
Profit for the year 78,476,644 319,479 96,755,888 397,666

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Currency translation difference - (80,317) - (40,232)

Other comprehensive losses for the year - (80,317) - (40,232)

Total comprehensive income for the year 78,476,644 239,162 96,755,888

Profit is attributable to:

lOwners of the Bank 78,476,644 319,479 96,755,888 397,666

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

lOwners of the Bank 78,476,644 239,162 96,755,888 357,434

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Separate Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 December 2024

Notes Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 36.a 495,180,105 2,015,877 58,167,804 239,069
Interest received 453,596,414 1,846,591 412,966,801 1,697,294
Interest paid (260,958,711) (1,062,363) (221,202,420) (909,142)
Income tax paid 21 (19,683,341) (80,131) (25,899,496) (106,447)
Payment of employee benefits 20 (452,506) (1,842) (889,634) (3,656)

Cash generated from operating activities 667,681,961 2,718,132 223,143,055

Cash flows from investing activities

Capital guarantee deposits (5,000,000) (20,355) (10,000,000) (41,100)
Payment for investment in securities (134,121122) (546,007) (8,820,341) (36,252)
Payment for investment in subsidiaries (10,000,000) (40,710) - -
Purchases of investment properties (492,516) (2,005) (1184,267) (4,867)
Purchases of property and equipment (6,080,677) (24,754) (8,285,402) (34,053)
Purchases of intangible assets (1,384,904) (5,638) (129,440) (532)
Proceeds from disposals of property and equipment 43,923 179 762,017 3132

Cash used in investing activities (157,035,296) (639,290) (27,657,433)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of share capital 26 50,000,000 200,000 100,000,000 400,000
Dividends paid to the Bank'’s shareholders 26 (50,000,000) (200,000)  (100,000,000) (400,000)
Proceeds from borrowings 19 105,912,798 431171 97,161,265 399,333
Repayments of borrowings 19 (202,391,909) (823,937) (101,057,008) (415,344)
Proceeds from subordinated debts 23 - o 13,000,000 53,430
Repayments of subordinated debts 23 (51,000,000) (207,621) (22,000,000) (90,420)
Principal elements on lease payments 12 (2,566,901) (10,450) (7,765,792) (31,917)

Cash used in financing activities (150,046,012) (610,837) (20,661,535)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 360,600,653 1,468,005 174,824,087
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 1,943,704,238 7,940,033  1,768,880,151 7,282,479
Currency translation differences = (133,210) - (60,974)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2,304,304,891 9,274,828 1,943,704,238 7,940,033

Non-cash investing activities disclosed in other note are investment properties (Note 11).
Non-cash financing activities disclosed in other note is the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (Note 12).
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated and separate financial statements
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CANADIA BANK PLC.
Notes to The Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2024
1. General

Canadia Bank Plc. (the Bank), and its subsidiaries, Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. (CNS) (formerly Cana Securities
Ltd.), are incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia, and the other subsidiary, Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL), is
incorporated in Lao P.D.R (together referred to as the Group).

The Bank is a commercial bank operating in accordance with the Cambodian Law on Commercial Enterprises
and under the supervision of the National Bank of Cambodia (NBC or the central bank), pursuant to the Law on
Banking and Financial Institutions of Cambodia and in accordance with the Banking Licence No. 05 issued by
the NBC, since 1991. The Bank's licence was renewed for an indefinite period following the NBC's Prakas No.
B7-06-207, dated 13 September 2006.

Canadia Investment Holding Plc. (CIHP), a public limited company incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia,
is the ultimate holding company of the Bank.

The principal activities of the Bank consist of the operation of core banking business and the provision of related
financial services through the Bank's head office and various branches in Phnom Penh and in the provinces.

The Bank's registered office is currently located at No. 315, Ang Duong Street, corner Monivong Boulevard,
Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia. The Bank has a total of 68 branches located in Phnom Penh and major
provinces in Cambodia.

The consolidated and separate financial statements were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2025.

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

21 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated and separate financial statements are prepared in accordance with Cambodian International
Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRS) including other interpretations and amendments that may occur in any
circumstances to each standard.

The consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for:

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

Lands and buildings of property and equipment measured at revalued amount;

Investment property measured at fair value;

Foreclosed properties (assets held for sales) measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell; and

° The application of CIAS 29 ‘Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies’ for the Group's entity
reporting in Lao Kip (LAK).
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2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
21 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

The Group and the Bank disclose the amount for each asset and liability that expected to be recovered or
settled no more than 12 months after the reporting period as current, and more than 12 months after the
reporting period as non-current.

The preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements in conformity with CIFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated and separate financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

An English version of the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared from the
consolidated and separate financial statements that are in the Khmer language. In the event of a conflict or
a difference in interpretation between the two languages, the Khmer language consolidated and separate
financial statements shall prevail.

22 New and Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations

(a) New and Amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations Adopted

The Group and the Bank have applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing on 1 January 2024

° Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current liabilities with covenants —
Amendments to CIAS 1;

. Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to CIFRS 16; and

° Supplier Finance Arrangements — Amendments to CIAS 7 and CIFRS 7.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts of recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(b) New Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2024 reporting period and have not been early adopted by the Group and the Bank.

. Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments — Amendments to CIFRS
9and CIFRS 7
. CIFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

The standards and amendments above are not expected to have a material impact on the Group and the Bank
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions except:

. Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements — CIFRS 18

CIFRS 18 will replace CIAS 1 Presentation of financial statements, introducing new requirements that will help
to achieve comparability of the financial performance of similar entities and provide more relevant information
and transparency to users. Even though CIFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in
the financial statements, its impacts on presentation and disclosure are expected to be pervasive, in particular,
those related to the statement of financial performance and providing management-defined performance
measures within the financial statements.

The Management is currently assessing the detailed implications of applying the new standard on the Group's
consolidated financial statements and the Bank's separate financial statements.

The Group and the Bank will apply the new standard from its mandatory effective date of 1 January 2027.
Retrospective application is required, and so the comparative information for the financial year ending 31
December 2026 will be restated in accordance with CIFRS 18.
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2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
23 Principles of Consolidation of The Subsidiary

Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. and Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. are subsidiaries over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Bank has controls over CBL because it governs the operating and financial policies of CBL.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group and the
Bank.

Inter-company transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between the Bank and the
subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and
consolidated statement of financial position, respectively.

i) Changes In Ownership Interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interest to reflect their relative interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Bank.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture, or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

i) Hyperinflation Accounting
The Group applied hyperinflation accounting to its operations in Lao PDR.

The three-year cumulative inflation in Lao PDR exceeded 100% in 2024. As a result, hyperinflation accounting
was applied for the year ended 31 December 2024 to the Group's operations in Lao PDR.

The Group's consolidated financial statements include the results and financial position of its operations in Lao
PDR, restated to the measuring unit current at the end of the period. Net monetary gain/(loss) is presented as
a separate line item in profit or loss.

In the Group's consolidated financial statements, all amounts in the subsidiary’s financial statements (assets,
liabilities, equity items, income, and expenses) are translated at the closing rate at the date of the most recent
statement of financial position. Comparative amounts presented in a stable currency are not adjusted for
subsequent changes in the price level or exchange rates.

In the reporting period in which the Group identifies the existence of hyperinflation, CIAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies needs to be applied asif Lao PDR had always been a hyperinflationary economy.
When CIAS 29 is first applied, a difference arises between:

o The reported closing equity at 31 December 2023 (which is translated using the closing rate at 31
December 2023); and
o The opening equity at 1 January 2024 (which is restated to the measuring unit current as of 31

December 2024 and translated using the closing rate at 31 December 2024).
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2.3 Principles of Consolidation of The Subsidiary (Continued)

i) Hyperinflation Accounting (Continued)

The Group recognises the difference in other comprehensive income as a net translation adjustment.

When applying CIAS 29 on an ongoing basis, the Group presents the combined effect of restatingin accordance
with CIAS 29 and translation according to CIAS 21 as a net change in other comprehensive income.

The price index used for the application of hyperinflation accounting was the Consumer Price Index published
by the Bank of the Lao PDR. The movement in the Consumer Price Index for the year ended 31 December
2024 was 243.52% (2023: 208.37%).

As at 31 December 2024, the impact of applying CIAS 29 was not material and thus not recognised and
presented.

2.4  Foreign Currency Translation
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the Bank are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group and the Bank operate (the
functional currency). The functional currency is the United States dollars (US$) because of the significant
influence of the US$ on its operations. The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in
US$ which is the Group's and the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and fromthe translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than US$ are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the consolidated and separate
statement of profit or loss, within interest expense. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss on a net basis.

(iii) Presentation In Khmer Riel

In compliance with the Law on Accounting and Auditing, the consolidated and separate financial statements
shall be expressed in Khmer Riel (KHR). The consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows are translated into KHR
using the average exchange rates for the year. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rates as at the reporting dates, and shareholders' capital and reserves
are translated at the rate at the date of transaction. The resulting exchange differences of other reserves are
recognised in the other comprehensive income.

The Group and the Bank have used the official rates of exchange published by the National Bank of Cambodia,
and as at the reporting date, the average rate was US$ 1to KHR 4,071 (2023: KHR 4,110) and the closing rate
was US$ 1to KHR 4,025 (2023: KHR 4,085).

(iv) Group Companies
The results and financial position of foreign operations (except those whose functional currency is the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate
as at the reporting date of that statement of financial position;
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2.4 Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)
(iv) Group Companies (Continued)

° income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. All amounts of assets, liabilities, equity items, income, and expenses are translated at the closing rate
at the date of the most recent statement of financial position; and
. When amounts are translated into the currency of a non-hyperinflationary economy, comparative

amounts are those that were presented as current year amounts in the relevant prior year financial
statements (not adjusted for subsequent changes inthe price level or subsequent changes inexchange
rates).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents includes cash on hand, the non-restricted deposits and placements with the central bank and with

other banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.6 Financial Instruments

2.6.1 Financial Assets

i) Classification

The Group and the Bank classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

° Those to be measured at amortised cost, which include cash on hand, deposits and placements with
the central bank, deposits and placements with other banks, loans and advances, investment securities
at amortised cost, and other financial assets; or

o Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OCI or through profit or loss).

For financial assets at amortised cost, the classification depends on the Group's and the Bank's model for
managing financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets cash flows.

. The asset is held within a business model with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows;
and
. The contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal outstanding.

The Group and the Bank reclassify financial assets when and only when their business model for managing
those assets changes.

For financial assets measured at fair value, gains or losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investment in equity instruments that are held for trading, this will depend on whether the Group and the Bank
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
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2.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)

2.6.1 Financial Assets (Continued)

ii) Recognition and Derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual provision of
the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the
date on which the Group and the Bank commit to purchase or sell the assets.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred, and the Group and the Bank have transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. A gain or loss on derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is recognised in
profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised.

iiii) Measurement

At the initial recognition, the Group and the Bank measure a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance
(ECL) is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost, which results in an accounting loss being
recognised in profit or loss when an asset is newly originated.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's and the Bank’s business model for
managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the assets. Based on these factors, the Group and the
Bank classify its debt instruments as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Amortised Cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The
carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognised. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.

Equity Instruments:

The Group and the Bank subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in profit or loss as applicable.

iv) Impairment

The Group and the Bank assess on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and with the exposure arising from credit commitments. The
Group and the Bank recognise a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of
ECL reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;
The time value of money; and
Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2.6 Financial Instruments (Continued)

2.6.1 Financial Assets (Continued)

iv) Impairment (Continued)

The Group and the Bank apply a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses for the following
categories:

. Debt instruments measured at amortised cost; and
. Credit commitments

The three-stage approach is based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:
Stage 1: 12-Month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are
not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - Not Credit Impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not
credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - Credit Impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become credit impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

ECL are recognised as credit impairment losses in profit or loss. Please refer to (Note 39.1 c) for credit risk in
financial risk management for detailed measurement on ECL.

2.6.2 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual provision
of the instruments. Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities of the Group and
the Bank include deposits from banks and other financial institutions, deposits from customers, borrowings,
subordinated debts, and other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value less transaction costs for all financial liabilities not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or
otherwise extinguished.

2.6.3 Credit Commitments

Credit commitments provided by the Group and the Bank are measured as the amount of the loss allowance.
The Group and the Bank have not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate,
or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For credit commitments, the expected credit losses are recognised as provisions (presented with other
liabilities). However, for contracts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and that the Group and
the Bank cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment component from
those on the loan component, the expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised together
with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the combined expected credit losses exceed the gross
carrying amount of the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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27 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated and separate
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Property and Equipment

Land and buildings are recognised at fair value based on periodic, but at least every five years, valuations by
external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings. A revaluation surplus is credited to
other reserves in shareholders’ equity. Buildings are being depreciated over the remaining useful lives after
revaluation.

All other property and equipment is recognised at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Revaluation surplus of land and buildings, net of deferred taxes: increases in the carrying amounts arising on
revaluation of land and buildings are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in reserves in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised
in profit or loss, the increase is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of
the same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from the property and equipment revaluation surplus
to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of assets less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives.

Freehold lands are not depreciated. Construction in progress represents property and equipment under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of construction, property and equipment, and other direct
costs. Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the relevant assets are completed and
ready for operational use.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30to 50 years

Leasehold improvement Lower of 20 years or lease term
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years

Office equipment 51010 Years

Computers and IT equipment 310 6 Years

Vehicles 510 8 Years

Leasehold improvements are presented together with buildings in the movement of property and equipment.
The assets' residual values, useful lives, and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down to its recoverable value immediately if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable value.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.
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29 Investment Properties

Land and buildings held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both is classified as investment property.
Investment property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Owned investment property (building) is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequently, the investment property is carried at fair value. Investment property under construction is
measured at fair value if the fair value is considered to be reliably determinable. Investment properties under
construction for which the fair value cannot be determined reliably, but for which the Bank expects the fair
value of the property will be reliably determinable when construction is completed, are measured at cost less
impairment until the fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed — whichever is
earlier.

210 Intangible Assets

Computer software is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over estimated useful life of five
years. Construction in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the relevant assets are completed
and ready for operational use. Costs associated with maintenance of computer software are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

21 Non-Current Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not
in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by
the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of derecognition. Non-current assets are
not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Non-current assets classified as held for
sale are presented in the other assets in the statement of financial position.

212 Investment In Subsidiary

In the Bank's separate financial statements, investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference between disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of investments are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The amounts due from
subsidiaries of which the Bank does not expect repayment in foreseeable future are considered as part of the
Bank’s investments in subsidiaries.

213 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful lives are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed forimpairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, the assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets, other than goodwill that suffered an impairment, are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Reversal of impairment losses is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised.
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214 Employee Benefits
i) Short-Term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the
employees of the Group and the Bank.

i) Pension Fund Scheme

The Group and the Bank pay monthly contributions for the compulsory pension scheme to National Social
Security Fund (NSSF), a publicly administered social security scheme for pension in Cambodia. The Group
and the Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due.

iili) Other Employment Benefits - Employment Seniority Payment

In June 2018, the Cambodian Government amended the Labour Law introducing the seniority pay scheme.
Subsequently in 21 September 2018, Prakas No. 443 K.B/Br.K.Kh.L, was issued providing guidelines on the
implementation of the law. In accordance with the law/prakas, each entity is required to pay each employee
with unspecified duration employment contract the following seniority scheme:

(a) Annual service - Effective January 2019, 15 days of their average monthly salary and benefits each
year payable every six month on 30 June and 31 December (7.5 days each payment).

(b) Past years of seniority service - Employees are entitled to 15 days of their salary per year of service
since the commencement of employment up to 31 December 2018 and still continue working with the Group
and the Bank. The past seniority payment depends on each staff past services and shall not exceed six months
of average gross salaries. On 22 March 2019, the Ministry of Labour and Vocational Training issued a guideline
number 042/19 K.B/S.N.N.Kh.L, to delay the payment of the past years of seniority service which will be
payable three days each, in June and in December, starting December 2021.

The annual service pay is considered as short-term employee benefits. These are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group and the Bank.

The past years of seniority service is paid out of gratitude fund. Upon resignation, employees are not entitled to
the remaining unpaid past years of seniority service but the remaining unpaid gratitude fund.

iv) Gratitude Fund

The Bank provides its employees with benefits under gratitude fund. The benefit is payable upon their retirement,
death, disablement, or upon voluntary termination. The amount of the lump sum benefit is dependent on the
employees’' monthly salary and years of services on 31 March 2022 if any employees have met eligible criteria
of seniority from two years and above up to the 31 March 2022.

. An employee who has worked for the Bank for two to five years is entitled upon resignation to a lump
sum payment representing 50% of the employee’s monthly basic salary on 31 March 2022 multiplied
by the number of full years' service rendered by 31 March 2022.

. An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than five years to ten years is entitled upon
resignation to a lump sum payment representing 75% of the employee’s monthly basic salary on 31
March 2022 multiplied by the number of full years' service rendered by 31 March 2022.

. An employee who has worked for the Bank for more than ten years is entitled upon resignation to
a lump sum payment representing 100% of the employee’s monthly basic salary on 31 March 2022
multiplied by the number of full years' service rendered by 31 March 2022.

The gratitude fund is a defined benefit obligation. It is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by using the projected unit credit method.
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214 Employee Benefits (Continued)
iv) Gratitude Fund (Continued)

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Where there is
no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets, if any. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in
retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the statement of financial position.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments
are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

215 Interest Income and Expense

Interest income and expense from financial instruments at amortised cost are recognised within interest
income and interest expense respectively in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life
of the financial instruments or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, The Group and the Bank take into account
all contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses.

Interest income is calculated by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for:

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (POCI), for which the original credit-adjusted
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the financial assets.
° Financial assets that are not POCI but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or ‘stage 3'), for

which interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortised cost (i.e.
net of the expected credit loss provision).

216 Fee and Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised as income when all conditions precedent are fulfilled (performance
obligations are satisfied and control is transferred over time or point in time).

Commitment fees for loans, advances, and financing that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together
with related direct costs) and income which forms an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial
instrument is recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate on the financial instrument.
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217 Leases
The Bank As A Lessor

Rental income from investment properties and multi-purpose tower that are leased to third parties under
operating lease are recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group and The Bank As A Lessee

As inception of contract, the Group and the Bank assess whether the contract is, or contains, alease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group and the Bank allocate the
consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the lease assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis.
i) Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments from fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Group and the Bank, the lessee's incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group and the Bank use its recent borrowing rate as a starting
point, making specific adjustments to the lease such as term, country, currency, and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest expense. The interest expense is charge to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

i) Right-Of-Use Assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; and

Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

Any initial direct costs; and
Restoration cots, if any.
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217 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group and the Bank are reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Subsequently the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

iili) Recognition Exemptions

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets and short-term leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss.

218 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated.

When there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

219 Current and Deferred Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income,
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period where the Group and the Bank operate and generate taxable income.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated and separate financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.20 Share Capital

Share capital is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new share are shown
in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.21 Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the Bank, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.

2.22 Reserves
a) General Reserves

General reserves are set up for any overall financial risk of the Group and the Bank. The Board of Directors
exercises its discretion for the use and maintenance of the general reserves by transferring from retained
earnings.

b) Regulatory Reserves

Banks and financial institutions are required to compute regulatory provisions, according to Prakas No.B7-017-
344 dated 1 December 2017 and Circular No. B7-018-001 dated 16 February 2018 on credit risk classification
and provisions on impairment, and Circular No. B7-021-2314 dated 28 December 2021 (implemented from
1 January 2022) on the classification and provisioning requirements for restructured loans, and Notification
No. B30-025-170 dated 5 February 2025 on calculation of the total provision. If the accumulated regulatory
provision is higher than the accumulated impairment based on CIFRS 9, the ‘topping up’ will be recorded as
regulatory reserves presented under equity. The reserve is subsequently reversed (up to zero) should the
accumulated regulatory provision equal or be lower than accumulated impairment based on CIFRS 9. The
regulatory reserve is set aside as a buffer, is non-distributable, is not allowed to be included in the net worth
calculation.

The regulatory provision is calculated by applying the prescribed credit grading rates issued by the NBC to
the gross carrying amount per CIFRS. These rates are as follows: Normal at 1%, Special Mention at 3%, Sub-
standard at 20%, Doubtful at 50%, and Loss at 100%.

2.23 Rounding of Amounts

All Khmer Riel amounts disclosed in the consolidated and separate financial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand currency units unless otherwise stated.

3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgements

Estimates, assumptions, and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group and the Bank make estimates, assumptions, and judgements concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates,
assumptions, and judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

i) Measurement of The Expected Credit Loss Allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost is an
area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about the future economic conditions
and credit behaviour. Explanation of the inputs assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL
is further detailed in Note 39.1 (c).
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3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgements (Continued)

i) Measurement of The Expected Credit Loss Allowance (Continued)

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for measuring
ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for identifying loans to customers that have experienced a significant increase in
credit risk (SICR);
Grouping financial assets sharing similar credit risk characteristics for the purposes of measuring ECL;
Choosing appropriate models and assumptions to measure ECL; and
Applying assumptions and analysis on expected future cash flows and forward-looking information.

ii) A Contract Contains A Lease And Its Useful Life

The Bank entered into a long-term lease contract for a building, which contains a transferable lease right. As
inception of contract, the Bank assesses that the contract contains a lease as the contract conveys the right
to control the use of the building for the period of the lease in exchange for consideration. The Bank assessed
that the useful life of the right-of-use asset arising from the lease of the building with a transferable lease right
to be 50 years. This is due to the assessment on the actual condition of the building and the expected physical
wear and tear from the use of the building.

iiii) Lease Term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or not terminated).

iv) Determination of Whether A Property Is Owner Occupied Or Investment Property

The Bank has a tower used for multi-purposes; certain floors are for bank’s operation, and others are for leases.
Because different parts of the property cannot be sold separately, and certain floors are leased out when the
bank's operation does not fully utilise the remaining floors, the Management has therefore determined that the
tower may be treated in its entirety as a property (not an investment property).

V) Gratitude Fund

The Bank provides its employee with gratitude fund based on the policy in Note 2.14 and recognised as
provision for employee benefits in the statement of financial position. The past years of seniority service is
paid out of this fund. The gratitude fund is a defined benefit obligation, while the Bank has not set up any plan
asset for this fund. The provision is calculated annually as the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period using the project unit credit method. In the computation, the Bank uses
financial and demographic assumptions such as discount rate, withdrawal rates, mortality rate, disability rates,
and retirement age, which are described in Note 20.

vi) Fair Value of The Revalued Properties

The Bank applies revaluation approach to its freehold land and buildings and obtained independent valuations
at least every five years.

At the end of the reporting date, the Management update their assessment of the fair value of each property,
considering the most recent independent valuations. The Management determines property’s value at the
amount reported within independent valuations.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information
is not available, the independent valuer considers current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those difference.



CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024 88

3. Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions, and Judgements (Continued)

vi) Fair Value of The Revalued Properties (Continued)

The key inputs under this market approach are the price per square metre from current selling prices of
comparable lots of land in the area (location and size) adjusted for negotiation and differences between
the subject property and the comparable. These are in level 2 fair value. For buildings where there is no
comparability (level 3 fair value), replacement costs approach is used to estimate the construction cost to build
the new buildings under similar specification of the subjects under valuations.

Vii) Fair Value of The Investment Property
The Bank obtains independent valuations for its leased-out building at least annually.

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank updates their assessment of the fair value of the property, taking
into account the most recent independent valuations. The Bank determines a property’s value within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information
is not available the Bank considers information from a variety of sources including current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences.

All resulting fair value estimates for the property is included in level 2. The key inputs under this approach are
the price per square metre from current year sales of comparable lots of land in the area (location and size).
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4. Cash OnHand

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Million KHR Uss Million KHR Uss Million KHR US$  Million KHR
Current
US Dollars 207,568,933 835,465 224,303,833 916,281 207,350,058 834,584 224,145,584 915,635
Khmer Riel 95,174,222 383,076 80,065,561 327,068 95,174,222 383,076 80,065,561 327,068
Others 16,481,801 66,339 21,112,648 86,245 16,290,042 65,568 20,704,463 84,577

319,224,956

1,284,880 325,482,042 1,329,594 318,814,322 1,283,228

324,915,608

5. Deposits and Placements With Other Banks

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
US$  Million KHR US$  MillionKHR US$  Million KHR US$  MillionKHR
Sross balances of 1102,246,567 4,436,542 966,981,079 3950117 1,094,424995 4405061 964,213,892 3,938,813
eposits and placements
Less: Impairment loss (1187,029) @,777) (931,299) (3,804) (1,022,818) @mnmz) (780,026) (3186)

allowance

Net balances of

1,101,059,528 4,431,765 966,049,780 3,946,313 1,093,402,177 4,400,944

deposits and
placements

963,433,866 3,935,627



920

998'cEV'€96 vv6'00v'y LLL'TOV'E6O'L 08£'6170'996 So/L'LEY'Y

€LE'OV6'e

825'6S0'LOL'L

CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024

788'86¢€ 8L9'G¥9'/6

€8¢'8¥7€ 62L'755'98

788'86¢€ 8L9'GY9'/6

€8€'8Y7€ 6¢L'755'98

Jus1indo-UoN

SPL'9eS’e 872'88£'598

195250y 8v¥'/8'900'L

LEV'LpS'e Z9l'70v'898

Z8€'€80'Y

66L'70S'7LO'L

waun)

998'€EV'€96

(981'¢) (920'084)

vve'oov'y

(ZLL'Y) (8L8'zz0'L)

LLL'201'€60'L

08£'6170'996

€LE'9V6'E

(vo8'e) (662'LE6)

So/'LEr'y

(2LL'v) (62028L'L)

825'6S0'LOL'L

sjuswade|d pue sysodap Jo saduejeq 19N

2ouemoje sso| Juawliedul| :sse

€18'8€6'c Z68'€LZ'796

1L90'sor'y §66'vZt'760'L

£11'056'€ 6/0'186'996

YS9’y £SS'9vZ'20L'L

sjuswade|d pue s)sodap Jo sedueleq SSol9)

LLZ'VEY'20S v99'ece'e ZEL'8EV'9SS €97'686'L €Y9'910'.8Y £0£'902'C sLL'0sz'8vs
099'0€6 0z8'c28'/2¢ £89'661'L zzo'e6s'eLe 099'0€6 0z8'€28'/2¢ £89'661'L T20'e6S'2LE sysodap paxi4
€8/'lzl'L LS¥'0L9'vLT LLB'6EL oLL'sv8'esL €08'850'L €78'761'65C 020'£0L €60259'G/L $)unodJe JuslNy

:$)ueq SeSSIBN0 YIM Saoueleq

L29'6LL'L9Y L6E'99L'C €98'086'£LES ¥59'096'L 9EV'796'6.L1 G€8'622'C Zh1'966'€SS
£68'VL8'L LUY'ELT VYV G68'GLL'Z 82¢'889'GeS LLL'168'L 6v.'962'€SY LL8'6rL'e S6v'rLL'YES susodap paxi4
vL0'LE 058'090'6 pLL'8E 862'697'6 vL0'LE 0S8'090'6 vLL'8E 862'697'6 s1unoodoe sbuines
667'vE vse'svr's 88¢'LL LEE'628'C €26'LL LE8'909'L 0L6'LY 6v9'cLi'oL SIUNOJJE JUBLNY
:s)ueq [eao] yum sasuejeg
YHM uoliliN $sSN YHM Uollilin $sSN YHM Uolilin $sn YHM Uolillin $snN
€20¢ 2o €20¢ vzoe

dnoig ay L

Nueg ayL

sadA} Junodoe Ag (e)

(panunuo9) s)ueg Jayio YIM siuswiddeld puy susodeq g



91 CANADIA BANK ANNUAL REPORT 2024

5. Deposits and Placements With Other Banks (Continued)

(b) Current accounts and fixed deposits pledged:

The Group and the Bank have pledged part of their balances with other banks as security with details as follows:

Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
The Group and the Bank
Visa Card operations 511,651 2,059 485,271 1,982
Mastercard operations 763,100 3,071 763,100 3117
Banker acceptances 8,000,000 32,200 8,000,000 32,680
Borrowed funds of the facilities (*) - - 98,510,333 402,415

9,274,751 37,330 107,758,704

(*) The borrowings had been repaid and thus no pledge required.

(c) Interestrate (per annum):

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Current accounts Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50%
Savings accounts Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50% Nil - 0.50%
Fixed deposits 1.50% - 7.00% 0.72% - 7.00% 1.50% - 7.00% 0.72% - 7.00%

(d) Impairment loss allowance:

The movements of impairment loss allowance on balance with other banks were as follows:

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023

US$ Million KHR US$  Million KHR US$  Million KHR US$  Million KHR

931,299 3,804 1,303,784 1,204,096

Allowance for the

year 257,438 1,048 (362,798) (1,491) 242,792 988 (424,070) (1,743)
Foreign operation

translation (1708) ) (0.687) (40) il i ) )
Currency

translation d (67) - (33) - (57) - (28)
difference

At 31 December 1,187,029 931,299 1,022,818 780,026
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6. Deposits and Placements With The Central Bank

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
US$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR US$ Million KHR US$  Million KHR
Current accounts 834,448,561 3,358,656 834,193,233 3,407,680 823,237,925 3,313,633 823,588,680 3,364,360
Negotiable certificate
243,801,060 981,299 126,017,008 514,779 243,801,060 981,299 126,017,008 514,779

of deposit (NCD)

1,078,249,621 4,339,955 960,210,241 3,922,459 1,067,038,985 4,294,832 949,605,688

Current 1,078,249,621 4,339,955 960,210,241 3,922,459 1,067,038,985 4,294,832 949,605,688 3,879,139

Non-current <] =] - - <] = - -

1,078,249,621 4,339,955 960,210,241 3,922,459 1,067,038,985 4,294,832 949,605,688

The Bank has pledged negotiable certificate of deposits (NCD) amounting to US$ 10,200,000 (2023:
US$ 27,200,000) with the central bank as collateral for settlement clearing facility. As at 31 December 2024
and 31 December 2023, the Bank had yet utilised the overdraft on settlement clearing facility. There were no
NCDs (2023: US$ 37,170,000) with the central bank pledged as collateral for borrowing on Liquidity Providing
Collateralised Operation (LPCO) (Note 19).

Annual interest rates:

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Deposits and placements with the Central Bank
Current accounts Nil Nil Nil Nil
Settlement accounts Nil Nil Nil Nil

Negotiable certificate of deposit 0.55% - 2.15% 0.55% - 2.15% 0.55% - 2.15% 0.55%- 2.15%
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9. Statutory Deposits With The Central Bank

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
US$  Million KHR US$ Million KHR us$ Million KHR US$ MillionKHR
Current
Rese_rve 439,117,264 1,767,447 399,358,066 1,631,378 437,957,453 1,762,780 399,088,689 1,630,278
requirements

Non-current

Capital
guarantee 94,095,883 378,736 75,979,217 310,375 80,001,229 322,004 74,999,637 306,373
deposits

533,213,147 2,146,183 475,337,283 1,941,753 517,958,682 2,084,784 474,088,326 1,936,651
(i) Reserve requirements
Canadia Bank Plc.

Thereserve requirement represents the minimum reserve which s calculated at 7% for KHR and other currencies
(2023: 7% for KHR and other currencies) of customers' deposits and borrowings in Khmer Riel (KHR) and other
currencies of the Bank. The reserve requirement bears no interest.

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL)

Under regulations of the Bank of the Lao P.D.R (BoL), CBL is required to maintain certain cash reserves with
the BOL in the form of compulsory deposits, which are computed at 8.00% for LAK and 10.00% for foreign
currencies, on a fortnight basis, of customer deposits having original maturities of less than 12 months (2023:
5.00% and 5.00%, respectively).

(ii) Capital guarantee deposits
Canadia Bank Plc.

Under the NBC Prakas No. B7-01-136, dated 15 October 2001, banks are required to maintain a capital
guarantee deposit of 10% of share capital. This deposit is refundable should the Bank voluntarily cease its
operations in Cambodia and it is not available for use in the Bank's day-to-day operations.

Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. (CNS)

In compliance with the SERC's Prakas No. 001/18 on the licencing of securities firms and securities
representatives, CNS is required to place a statutory deposit into SERC's bank account maintained with
the National Bank of Cambodia amounting to KHR 4,000,000,000 (equivalent to US$ 993,788) (2023:
KHR 4,000,000,000, equivalent to US$ 979,192) for operating as a securities underwriter in Cambodia.
The deposit (non-interest bearing), which is not available for use in the Company's day-to-day operations, is
refundable should the Company voluntarily cease its operations in Cambodia.

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (CBL)

According to Decree No. 02/PR of BOL, commercial banks are required to maintain a minimum balance of special
deposit at BOL which is equivalent to 25% of their paid-up capital to secure for their operational continuance.
CBL was then approved by the BOL to withdraw from this deposit account to supplement its working capital.
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10. Property and Equipment (Continued)

Land and buildings revaluation: There were no revaluation in 2024 and 2023.1n 2022, the Bank engaged an
independent valuer to revalue its land and buildings which result in both gains or losses to each net book value
of land and buildings under property and equipment.

Carrying amounts that would have been recognised if land and buildings were stated at cost:

Freehold land Buildings

Us$ Uss$ Uss$ uss
At cost Revalued At cost Revalued

At 31 December 2024
Cost/Revalued amount 30,305,773 103,970,000 60,040,904 89,915,181
Accumulated depreciation - - (33,791,802) (35,022,110)

Net book amount 30,305,773 103,970,000 26,249,102 54,893,071

At 31 December 2023

Cost/Revalued amount 30,305,773 103,970,000 55,239,957 86,900,341

Accumulated depreciation - (31,019,823) (32,994,261)

Net book amount 30,305,773 103,970,000 24,220,134 53,906,080
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11. Investment Properties

Construction in
Freehold land progress Building Total
Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$

The Group and the Bank

Non-current

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Opening amount 6,335,000 4,366,255 - 10,701,255
Additions - - 492,516 492,516
Transfer - (4,366,255) 4,366,255 -

Closing amount 6,335,000 4,858,771 11,193,771

In Million KHR equivalent 25,498 19,557 45,055

Construction in
Freehold land progress Building Total
uUs$ Us$ uUs$ uUs$

The Group and the Bank

Non-current

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Opening amount 6,030,000 1,645132 - 7,675132
Additions - 2,721,123 - 2,721,123
Fair value gain recognised in other income 305,000 - - 305,000

Closing amount 6,335,000 4,366,255 10,701,255

In Million KHR equivalent 25,878 17,837 43,715

In 2024, the fair value gain on land and buildings were not material and not recognized. In 2023, the Bank
measured the land at fair value with a gain of US$ 305,000. The fair value of investment properties under
construction (construction in-progress) are not reliably estimated because they are still in the construction
stage. As at 31 December 2024, there was no construction in-progress payable (2023: US$ 1,536,856). The
Group and the Bank classify cash outflows to acquire or construct investment properties as investing and
rental inflows as operating cash flows.

The rental income earned during the year was US$ 396,000 (2023: US$ 72,600), and there were no
operating expenses in relation to the investment property.
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12. Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group and the Bank are lessees.

The Group and the Bank lease buildings for its operations. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 to 50 years. There is no renewal for these leases.

(i) Amounts recognized in the consolidated and separate statement of financial position

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Uss$ Million KHR Uss$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR

Right-of-use assets
(Non-current)

Buildings 25,778,389 103,758 28,198,698 115192 25,778,389 103,758 28,198,698 115,192

Additions to the right-of- 738,085 9,598,001 39,448 738,085 9,598,001

use assets during the year

Lease liabilities

Current 3,374,388 13,682 2,900,163 11,847 3,374,388 13,5682 2,900,163 11,847
Non-current 16,652,198 67,025 18,765,808 76,658 16,652,198 67,025 18,765,808 76,658

20,026,586 80,607 21,665,971 88,505 20,026,586 80,607 21,665,971

(ii) Amounts recognized in the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss

The consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and consolidated and separate statement of cash
flows show the following amounts relating to leases:

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
uss$ Million KHR uss Million KHR uss Million KHR Uss Million KHR
Principal lease payments 2,566,901 10,450 7,765,792 31,917 2,566,901 10,450 7,765,792 31,917
Interest paid 1,436,508 5,848 1,537,475 6,319 1,436,508 5,848 1,537,475 6,319

Total cash outflow for

4,003,409 9,303,267 4,003,409 9,303,267
leases

Interest expense on lease

liabilities (Note 27) 1,436,508 1,537,475 1,436,508 1,537,475

Depreciation charge for
right-of-use assets (Note 3,167,834 3,041,079 3,167,834 3,041,079
31)

Expenses relating to leases
of low-value assets, and
short-term leases assets
(Note 32)

1,557,967 1,524,904 1,547,726 1,511,499

Maturity analysis is included in Note 39.3 liquidity risk.
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13. Intangible Assets

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Us$ Us$ Us$ Uss
Non-current
As at 1 January
Cost 6,583,356 6,453,916 6,461,177 6,331,737
Accumulated amortisation (5,424,069) (4,915,980) (5,302,950) (4,795,794)

Net book value 1,159,287 1,537,936 1,158,227

For the year ended 31 December

Opening net book value 1,159,287 1,537,936 1,158,227 1,635,943
Additions 1,384,904 129,440 1,384,904 129,440
Amortisation charge (556,839) (508,089) (556,839) (507,156)

Closing net book value 1,987,352 1,159,287 1,986,292

As at 31 December

Cost 7,968,260 6,583,356 7,846,081 6,461,177

Accumulated amortisation (5,980,909) (5,424,069) (5,859,789) (5,302,950)
Net book value 1,987,351 1,159,287 1,986,292

In Million KHR equivalent yAL ) 4,736 7,995

14. Investment In Subsidiaries

Investment in subsidiaries in the separate financial statements represents the net consideration paid for the acquisition of
the unquoted shares of the subsidiary. The Group's and the Bank's management assesses that there were no impairment
losses on investment in subsidiary during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

Us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
The Bank
Non-current
Canadia Securities Co., Ltd. 11,000,000 44,275 11,000,000 44,935
Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. 38,005,880 152,974 28,005,880 114,404
49,005,880 197,249 39,005,880 159,339

The Bank and CIHP respectively own 77% and 23% (2023: 68% and 32%) of the equity interest of CBL, which give the
Bank the controls over CBL. On 5 December 2023, shareholders’ resolution of CIHP and Board of Directors’ resolution
of the Bank approved the additional capital injection of US$ 10,000,000 from the Bank to Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. The
additional capital injection was approved by National Bank of Cambodia through letter No. B7-024-592 Chor.Tor dated
25 March 2024, and at the end of March 2024, CBL received the approval letter dated 20 March 2024 for the additional
capital injection, from the Bank of Lao PDR.
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15. Deferred Tax Liabilities - Net

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
uUs$ Million KHR uss$ Million KHR uUss Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Non-current
Deferred tax assets 11,789,206 47,452 14,822,107 60,548 11,759,707 47,333 14,788,751 60,412
Deferred tax liabilities (21,497,430) (86,528) (21,590,316) (88,196) (21,496,599) (86,524) (21,585,565) (88177)

Deferred tax liabilities - net (9,708,224) (39,076) (6,768,209) (27,648) (9,736,892) (39,191) (6,796,814) (27,765)

The movement of net deferred tax assets during the year as follows:

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023

Uss Million KHR uss Million KHR uUss Million KHR uUss Million KHR

At 1 January (6,768,209) (27,648) (6,213,344) (25,583) (6,796,814) (27,765) (6,241,437)

Charged to profit or loss (2,940,015) (11,969) (554,865) (2,280) (2,940,078) (11,969) (655,377) (2,283)

Currency translation

difference = 541 - 215 s 543 - 214

At 31 December (9,708,224) (39,076) (6,768,209) (27,648) (9,736,892) (39,191) (6,796,814)

(i) Deferred tax assets:
Provision for
employee Unearned Impairment Lease
benefits loan fees loss liabilities
us$ uss$ Us$ us$ uss$

The Group
2024
At1January 2024 1,543,816 3,631,718 5,308,174 4,338,399 14,822,107
Charged to profit or loss (1,230) (209,230) (2,489,361) (333,080) (3,032,901

At 31 December 2024 1,542,586 3,422,488 2,818,813 4,005,319

In Million KHR equivalent 6,209 13,776 11,346 16,121

2023
At 1 January 2023 1,635,614 3,892,445 4,663,029 3,978,131 14,169,219
Charged to profit or loss (91,798) (260,727) 645,145 360,268 652,888

At 31 December 2023 1,543,816 3,631,718 5,308,174 4,338,399

In Million KHR equivalent 6,306 14,836 21,684 17,722
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Provision for
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employee Unearned Impairment Lease
benefits loan fees loss liabilities
uUs$ uUs$ uUs$ us$ uUs$
The Bank
2024
At 1 January 2024 1,543,816 3,631,718 5,280,021 4,333,196 14,788,751
Charged to profit or loss (1,230) (209,230) (2,490,707) (327,877) (3,029,044)

At 31 December 2024

In Million KHR equivalent

1,542,586

3,422,488

2,789,314

4,005,319

6,209

13,776

1,227

16,121

2023
At 1 January 2023 1,635,614 3,892,445 4,635,679 3,968,132 14,131,870
Charged to profit or loss (91,798) (260,727) 644,342 365,064 656,881

At 31 December 2023

In Million KHR equivalent

1,543,816

6,306

3,631,718

14,836

5,280,021

21,569

4,333,196

17,701

(i) Deferred tax liabilities
assets depreciation
Us$ uss
The Group
2024
At 1 January 2024 (5,644,456) (15,945,860) (21,590,316)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss 488,779 (395,893) 92,886

At 31 December 2024

In Million KHR equivalent

(5,155,677)

(20,752)

(16,341,753)

(65,776)

(21,497,430)

(86,528)

2023
At 1 January 2023 (4,337,789) (16,044,774) (20,382,563)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (1,306,667) 98,914 (1,207,753)

At 31 December 2023

In Million KHR equivalent

(5,644,456)

(23,058)

(15,945,860)

(65,138)

(21,590,316)

(88,196)
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15. Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/Assets (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax liabilities: (continued)

Right-of-use Accelerated
assets depreciation
Uss$ Us$ Uss
The Bank
2024
At 1 January 2024 (5,639,739) (15,945,826) (21,585,565)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 484,062 (395,096) 88,966

At 31 December 2024 (5,155,677) (16,340,922) (21,496,599)

In Million KHR equivalent (20,752) (65,772) (86,524)

2023
At 1 January 2023 (4,328,355) (16,044,952) (20,373,307)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss (1,311,384) 99,126 (1,212,258)

At 31 December 2023 (5,639,739) (15,945,826)

In Million KHR equivalent (23,038) (65,139)
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23. Subordinated Debts (Continued)

This represents a long-term unsecured borrowing from Lok Neak Oknha Dr. Pung Keav Se, Chairman, with
the principal outstanding as at 31 December 2024 of US$ 30,000,000 (2023: US$ 81,000,000) based on
various agreements and terms range from five to seven years with interest rate ranging from 7.00% to 8.82%
(2023: from 7.00% to 8.82%) per annum.

The total combined facilities’ limits of US$ 145,000,000 had already been approved by the National Bank
of Cambodia in the past years to be included in Tier |l capital for the purpose of Net Worth calculation. As at
31 December 2024 and as at 31 December 2023, US$ 140,000,000 have been utilised, and the remaining
undrawn are available until 2026.

The movement of subordinated debts during the year is as follow:

The Group and the Bank

2024 2023

Uss Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
At 1 January 81,548,020 333,124 90,539,738 372,752
Additions - - 13,000,000 53,430
Repayments (51,000,000) (207,621) (22,000,000) (90,420)
Interest charges 4,997,143 20,343 7,813,188 32112
Interest paid (5,302,613) (21,587) (7,804,906) (32,078)
Currency translation difference - (2,533) - (2,672)

At 31 December 30,242,550 121,726 81,548,020

24. Share Capital

The total authorised amount of share capital comprises 800 million shares (2023: 750 million shares) with a
par value of US$1 per share (2023: US$1 per share). All issued shares have been fully paid for.

Million KHR Million KHR

Share capital - paid-up 800,000,000 3,200,000 750,000,000 3,000,000

The movements of share capital were as follows:

Million KHR Million KHR
At1 January 750,000,000 3,000,000 650,000,000 2,600,000
2:/?(;2:23' share capital from cash 50,000,000 200,000 100,000,000 400,000

800,000,000 3,200,000 750,000,000 3,000,000
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38. Related Party Transactions and Balances

The Group and the Bank entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of
business. The volumes of related party transactions, outstanding balance at the year end and relating expenses
and income for the year are as follows:

a) Related parties and relationship

The related parties of the Group and the Bank are as follows:

Related party Relationship
Ultimate parent Canadia Investment Holding Plc.
Subsidiaries Canadia Securities Co., Ltd.
Canadia Bank Lao Ltd.
Related companies All entities under the same ultimate parent company
Key management personnel All directors and key management (including their close

family members) of the Group and the Bank who make critical
decisions in relation to the strategic direction of the Group and
the Bank

The following transactions were carried out with related parties. All the transactions were made on normal
commercial terms and conditions and at market rate.

b) Loans to directors and key management

us$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
The Group and Bank
Outstanding loan balances 2,323,850 9,353 2,180,293 8,906
Interest income 120,299 490 132,955 546

Loans and advances to key management personnel and subsidiary are unsecured and bear interest rates of 5.00% to
8.00% per annum (2023: 5.00% to 8.50% per annum). Allowances for expected credit losses for loans to related parties
were US$14,435 for the Group and the Bank (2023: US$10,297).

c) Loan to related parties

uss Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
The Group and Bank's Other related companies
Outstanding loan balances 404,470,497 1,627,994 104,474,602 426,779
Interest income 22,303,002 90,796 2,949,628 12,123

Loans and advances to other related companies are unsecured and bear interest rates of 7.50% to 8.50% per annum
(2023: 7.50% to 8.50% per annum). Allowances for expected credit losses for loans to other related companies
were US$ 1,750,833 for the Group and the Bank (2023: US$ 647,985).
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38. Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)

e) Deposits and placements with related parties
2024 2023
uUs$ Million KHR Us$ Million KHR
Current and savings deposits 17,621,102 70,925 21,076,998 86,100
Fixed deposits 100,674,224 405,214 102,802,277 419,947
Interest income 251,807 1,025 248,646 1,022

Allowances for expected credit losses for deposits and placements with related parties were US$ 448,093 (2023: US$
455,615).

Interest rate (per annum):

The Group The Bank

2024 2023 2024 2023
Current and savings deposits Nil - 0.25% Nil - 0.25% Nil - 0.25% Nil - 0.25%
Fixed deposits 3.50%-6.75% 3.50%-6.75% 3.50%-6.75%  3.50% - 6.75%
f) Investment securities at amortised cost with related parties

Please refer to Note 8 for investment securities at amortised cost and related impairment loss allowance, and the interest
income from investment securities at amortised cost with related parties was US$ 3,046,667 (2023: US$ 2,749,541)
for the Group and the Bank.

g) Subordinated debts from related parties

Please refer to Note 23 for key terms and conditions. Interest expenses for subordinated debts from related parties was
US$ 4,997,143 (2023: US$ 7,813,188) for both the Group and the Bank.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
391 Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Group's and the Bank’s customers, clients
or market counterparties fail to fulfil their contractual obligations to the Group and the Bank. Credit risk arises
from deposits and placements with central banks and other banks, loans and advances, investment securities
at amortised cost, other financial assets at amortised cost, and credit commitments. Credit exposure arises
principally in lending activities.

a) Credit risk measurement
Credit risk is managed on a group basis.

Central banks have no historical loss, and with strong capacity to meet obligation in near term, expected
credit loss for deposits and placements with central banks are nil. Deposits and placements with other banks
are considered to be low credit risk. The credit ratings of these assets are monitored for credit deterioration.
Measurement for impairment is limited to 12-month expected credit loss. Investment securities at amortised
cost and other financial assets at amortised cost are monitored for its credit rating deterioration, and the
measurement of impairment follows a three-stage approach in Note 39.1 (c). Expected credit loss for other
financial assets is insignificant.

For loans and advances and credit commitments, the estimation of credit exposure for risk management
purposes requires the use of models, as the exposure varies with changes in market conditions, expected cash
flows and the passage of time. The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations
as to the likelihood of default occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of default correlations between
counterparties. The Group and the Bank measure credit risk using Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD), and Loss Given Default (LGD) for the purposes of measuring Expected Credit Loss under CIFRS 9.

b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group and the Bank operate and provide loans and advances to individuals or enterprises within the
Kingdom of Cambodia. The Group and the Bank manage limits and control the concentration of credit risk
whenever it is identified.

The Group and the Bank employ a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional
of these is the taking of security in the form of collateral for loans and advances. The Group and the Bank
implement guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types as security for loans and advances are:

o mortgages over residential properties (land, building and other properties); and
. charges over business assets such as land and buildings.
c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies

The measurement of expected credit loss allowance under the CIFRS 9's three-stage approach is to recognise
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for financial instruments for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial origination or is credit-impaired as at the reporting date. The financial instrument which
has not undergone any significant deterioration in credit risk shall be recognised with 12-month expected
credit loss allowance.

Under the three-stage approach, the financial instrument is allocated into three stages based on the relative
movement in the credit risk.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.1 Creditrisk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

. Stage 1 includes financial instruments that neither have a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition nor credit-impaired as at reporting date. For these assets, 12-month expected credit loss
allowance are recognised.

° Stage 2 includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but do not have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime expected
credit loss allowance are recognised.

. Stage 3 includes financial instruments that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date. For these assets, lifetime expected credit loss allowance are recognised.

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those financial assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition. Their expected credit loss allowance is always measured on a lifetime
basis (Stage 3).

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group and the Bank in addressing the requirements of
the standard on the measurement of allowances are:

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

The assessment of SICR shall be a multifactor and holistic analysis and based on a mixture of quantitative
and/or qualitative information. To determine whether the risk of default of a loan/financing has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the current risk of default at the reporting date is compared with the risk
of default at initial recognition. A borrower is considered to have credit risk increased significantly since initial
recognition if past due is 30 days or more.

(i) Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group and the Bank define a financial instrument as in default which is also credit-impaired when it meets
one of the following criteria:

. The borrower/obligor is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments for a short-term
facility.

. The borrower/obligor is 90 days past due or more on its contractual payments for a long-term facility.

. The loan is forced impaired due to various reasons, such as bankruptcy, significant financial difficulty,

etc. Inthe event where a loan is not in default or past due but force impaired, the loan shall be classified
as impaired upon approval by the management.

. Restructuring and rescheduling of a loan facility involves any substantial modification made to the
original repayment terms and conditions of the loan facility following an increase in the credit risk of an
obligor/counterparty.

° When an obligor/counterparty has multiple loans with the Group and the Bank and cross default
obligation applies, an assessment of provision is required under which default of one debt obligation
triggers default on another debt obligation (cross default). Where there is no right to set off clause
is available, the assessment of provision needs to be performed on individual loan level instead of
consolidated obligor/counterparty level.

o Write-off/charged-off accounts.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.1 Creditrisk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(iii) Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions, and estimation techniques

The Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is measured on either a 12-month (12M) or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is considered to
be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Loss
Given Default (LGD), and Exposure at Default (EAD), defined as follows:

. The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation (as per Definition
of default and credit-impaired above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

° Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group's and the Bank's expectation of the extent of losson a
defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of
collateral or other credit support. LGD is a percentage loss per unit of exposure at the time of default
(EAD). LGD is calculated on a 12-month or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of
loss expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months and lifetime LGD is the percentage
of loss expected to be made if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the loan.

° EAD is based on the amounts the Group and the Bank expect to be owed at the time of default, over
the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime EAD).

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD, and EAD for each future year and for each collective segment.
These three components are multiplied together. This effectively calculates an ECL for each future year, which
is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the
original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the current 12M PD.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made post
default.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by
product type.

. For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed
by the borrower over a 12-month or lifetime basis.
° For revolving products, utilisation rate at default is incorporated to project future expected outstanding

balance by considering the credit limit or undrawn balance in 12M EAD and lifetime EAD.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation are monitored and reviewed periodically. There have been
no significant changes in estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the reporting period.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
391 Creditrisk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(iv) Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The estimation of ECL considers forward-looking information. The Group and the Bank have performed
statistical analysis based on historical experience to identify the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

The analysis is performed on PD to understand the impact changes in these variables have had historically
on default rate. Historical economic variables for analysis are sourced from an external research house. The
statistical regression analysis shows no relationship of these economic variables on historical default rate,
which is a reflective relationship of the current economic condition.

The Group and the Bank assess that the unadjusted historical information is the best reasonable and
supportable information, so forward-looking information was not incorporated on 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.

The Group and the Bank are to periodically perform statistical analysis and monitor its portfolio's circumstances.

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise analysed within above, such as the impact of any
regulatory, legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed to have a material
impact and therefore no adjustment has been made to the ECL for such factors.

The Group and the Bank periodically perform assessment on the appropriateness of the proxies used on its
portfolio’s circumstances.

(v) Grouping of exposure for ECL measured on collective basis

For expected credit loss provisions modelled on a collective basis, a grouping of exposures is performed on the
basis of shared risk characteristics, such that risk exposures within a group are homogeneous.

In performing this grouping, there must be sufficient information for the group to be statistically credible. Where
sufficient information is not available internally, the Group and the Bank have considered benchmarking internal/
external supplementary data to use for modelling purposes. The appropriateness of groupings is monitored
and reviewed on a periodic basis.

(vi) Write-off policy

Write-off is usually taken when relevant recovery actions have been exhausted or further recovery is not
economically feasible or justifiable. When a loan or debt instrument is deemed uncollectible, it is written-off
against the related allowance for impairment. Such loans are either written-off in full or partially after taking into
consideration the realisable value of collateral (if any) and when in the judgement of the management, there is
no prospect of recovery. All write-offs must be approved by The Board of Directors or its delegated authorities.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
391 Creditrisk (continued)

c) Impairment (expected credit loss), write-off, and modification of financial assets policies
(continued)

(vii) Modification of loans

The Group and the Bank sometimes renegotiate or otherwise modify the contractual cash flows of loans to
customers. When this happens, the Group and the Bank assess whether or not the new terms are substantially
different to the original terms. The Group and the Bank do this by considering, among others, the following
factors:

o If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
. Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based return that

substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.

Significant change in the interest rate.

Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements, that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

The risk of default of such loans after modification is assessed at the reporting date and compared with the
risk under the original terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not substantial and so does not
result in derecognition of the original loans. The Group and the Bank monitor the subsequent performance of
modified assets. The Group and the Bank may determine that the credit risk has significantly improved after
restructuring, so that the assets are moved from Stage 3 or Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL) to Stage 1 (12-month ECL).

d) Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements of the
Group and the Bank are as follows:

exposure exposure

Us$ Million KHR
The Group
31 December 2024 On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 1,101,059,528 4,431,765
Loans and advances to customers 5,098,696,185 20,522,252
Investment securities at amortised cost 194,790,651 784,032
Other financial assets 83,291,686 335,250
Total 6,477,838,050 26,073,299
Off-Balance sheet items
Unused portion of approved credit facilities, guarantees, 192,921,332 776,508

acceptances and other financial facilities
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
391 Creditrisk (continued)

d) Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements of the
Group and the Bank are as follows: (continued)

Maximum credit Maximum credit

exposure exposure

Million KHR
The Group
31 December 2023 On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 966,049,780 3,946,313
Loans and advances to customers 4,866,069,063 19,877,892
Investment securities at amortised cost 62,732,632 256,263
Other financial assets 90,276,378 368,779
Total 5,985,127,853 24,449,247
Off-Balance sheet items
;J:;::er;cf)irr‘:iao:c(i);e;gg:i(:i\;esd credit facilities, guarantees, acceptances 302,654,461 1,236,343
The Bank
31 December 2024 On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 1,093,402177 4,400,944
Loans and advances to customers 5,082,966,871 20,458,942
Investment securities 191,706,485 771,619
Other financial assets 83,335,471 335,425
Total 6,451,411,004 25,966,930
Off-Balance sheet items
;J::sof::cf)irr:i’:‘):c?aflafgg:i(;veesd credit facilities, guarantees, acceptances 192136,031 773,348
The Bank
31 December 2023 On Balance sheet items
Deposits and placements with other banks 963,433,866 3,935,627
Loans and advances to customers 4,849,930,402 19,811,966
Investment securities 59,647,465 243,660
Other financial assets 88,803,546 362,763
Total 5,961,815,279 24,354,016
Off-Balance sheet items
Unused portion of approved credit facilities, guarantees, acceptances 302,654,461 1236,343

and other financial facilities
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.1 Creditrisk (continued)

d) Maximum exposures to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements of the
Group and the Bank are as follows: (continued)

The above table represents a worst-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group and the Bank, since collateral held
and/or other credit enhancement attached were not taken into account. For on-balance sheet assets, the exposures set
out above are based on net carrying amounts. As shown above, 95.7% for the Group and the Bank (2023: 97.4%) of total
maximum exposure is derived from deposits and placements with other banks and loans and advances. While deposits
and placements with other banks are low credit risk, the Management is confident of its ability to continue to control and
sustain minimal exposure on credit risk resulting from the Group's and the Bank'’s loans and advances due to the following:

. Almost all loans and advances are collateralised

. The Group and the Bank have a proper credit evaluation process in place for granting of loans and advances to
customers.

e) Credit quality of financial assets

Loans and advances and credit commitments

The Group and the Bank assess credit quality of loans, advances, and financing using NBC classification. Credit quality
description is summarised as follows:

Credit Quality Description

Standard monitoring Obligors in this category exhibit strong capacity to meet financial commitment.

Special monitoring Obligorsinthis category have afairly acceptable capacity to meet financial commitments.
Default/Credit impaired Obligors are assessed to be impaired.

Financial assets other than loans and advances and credit commitments

The credit quality of financial instruments other than loans, advances, and financing, are determined based on the ratings
of counterparties as defined equivalent ratings of other international rating agencies as defined below:

Credit Quality Description
Sovereign Refer to financial assets issued by central banks or guarantees by central banks.
Investment grade Refers to the credit quality of the financial asset that the issuer is able to meet payment

obligation and exposure bondholder to low credit risk of default.

Non-investment grade Refers to low credit quality of the financial asset that is highly exposed to default risk.

No rating Refers to financial assets which are currently not assigned with ratings due to
unavailability of ratings models.

Credit impaired Refers to the asset that is being impaired.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

391 Credit risk (continued)
g) Concentration of financial assets with credit risk exposure
Industry sector

The following table provides a breakdown of the Group's and the Bank's main credit exposure at their carrying amounts,
as categorised by industry sector.

Deposits and Loans and
) Investment
placements with advances to . Other assets
securities
other banks customers
us$ us$ us$ us$ us$
The Group
31December 2024
Financial institutions 1,101,059,528 118,924,700 - - 1,219,984,228
Services - 785,298,166 - 83,291,686 868,589,852
Housing - 739,657,563 - - 739,657,563
Building and constructions - 1,922,432,304 - - 1,922,432,304
Wholesale and retails - 573,534,228 - - 573,534,228
Import and export - 321,584,643 - - 321,584,643
Agriculture - 150,039,074 - - 150,039,074
Others - 487,225,507 194,790,651 - 682,016,158

In Million KHR equivalent

1,101,059,528

4,431,765

5,098,696,185

20,522,252

194,790,651

784,032

83,291,686

335,250

6,477,838,050)

31December 2023

Financial institutions 966,049,780 132,252,222 - - 1,098,302,002
Services - 680,546,204 - 90,276,378 770,822,582
Housing - 836,581,518 - - 836,581,518
Building and constructions - 1,723,454,264 - - 1,723,454,264
Wholesale and retails - 621,914,136 - - 621,914,136
Import and export - 298,274,440 - - 298,274,440
Agriculture - 157,594,799 - - 157,594,799
Others - 415,451,480 62,732,632 - 478,184,112

966,049,780 4,866,069,063 62,732,632 90,276,378

5,985,127,853]

In Million KHR equivalent 3,946,313 19,877,892 256,263 368,779
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39.

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

391 Credit risk (continued)
g) Concentration of financial assets with credit risk exposure (continued)
Industry sector (continued)
Deposits and Loans and
placements with advances to Investn?(?nt Other assets Total
other banks customers securities
Us$ Us$ Uss$ uUs$ Us$

The Bank
31December 2024
Financial institutions 1,093,402,177 118,924,700 - - 1,212,326,877
Services - 784,158,280 - 83,335,471 867,493,751
Housing - 735,631,879 - - 735,631,879
Building and constructions - 1,915,973,907 - - 1,915,973,907
Wholesale and retails - 573,634,228 - - 573,534,228
Import and export - 321,584,643 - - 321,584,643
Agriculture - 149,987,376 - - 149,987,376
Others - 483,171,858 191,706,485 - 674,878,343

1,093,402,177

In Million KHR equivalent

4,400,944

5,082,966,871

20,458,942

191,706,485

771,619

83,335,471

335,425

6,451,411,004

31December 2023

Financial institutions 963,433,866 132,252,222 - - 1,095,686,088
Services - 679,632,132 - 88,803,546 768,435,678
Housing - 835,769,932 - - 835,769,932
Building and constructions - 1,714,213,686 - - 1,714,213,686
Wholesale and retails - 621,914,136 - - 621,914,136
Import and export - 298,274,440 - - 298,274,440
Agriculture - 157,557,800 - - 157,557,800
Others - 410,316,054 59,647,465 - 469,963,519

963,433,866

In Million KHR equivalent

3,935,627

4,849,930,402

19,811,966

59,647,465

88,803,546

362,763

5,961,815,279

24,354,016
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.2 Marketrisk

The Group and the Bank take exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk arises from open
positions in interest rates, currency, and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads,
foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.

The Group and the Bank do not use derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its risk exposure.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Bank operate in Cambodia and transact in many currencies, and are exposed to currency
risks primarily with respect to Khmer Riel, and others are not significant.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is not the Group's and the Bank's functional currency.

The Management monitors foreign exchange risk against the Group's and the Bank's functional currency.
However, the Group and the Bank do not hedge its foreign exchange risk exposure arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities using forward contracts.

The Group's and the Bank's policy is to maintain foreign currency exposure within acceptable limits and within
existing regulatory guidelines.

The table below summarises the Group's and the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk.
Included in the table are the Group's and the Bank's financial instruments at their carrying amounts by currency
in US$ equivalent.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.2 Marketrisk (continued)

a) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As shown in the table above, the Group and the Bank are primarily exposed to changes in USD/KHR exchange
rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changesin the exchange rates arises mainly from US-dollar denominated

financial instruments.
31 December 2024 31 December 2023

-1% -1% -1% -1%
Depreciation Appreciation Depreciation Appreciation
Us$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss

The Group
KHR (130,839) 128,248 (84,772) 83,094
Others 665,731 (652,548) 230,479 (225,915)

534,892 (524,300) 145,707

In Million KHR equivalents 2178 (2,134) 599

The Bank
KHR (169,041) 165,693 (125,723) 123,233
Others 309,184 (303,062) (14,669) 14,378

140,143 (137,369) (140,392)

In Million KHR equivalent 571 (559) (577)

The Group's subsidiary has equity investments at FVOCI which are in KHR. Should the USD/KHR exchange
appreciate or depreciate by 2%, the impact arises from the fluctuation would result in an increase or decrease
to the Group's other component of equity (OCI) as below.

Impact on other components of equity

2024 2023

uUs$ Us$

2% Appreciation (17,453) (22,692)
In Million KHR equivalent (Va)) (93)
2% Depreciation 18,166 23,618

In Million KHR equivalent 74 97
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.2 Marketrisk (continued)
b) Securities price risk

Securities price risk is the risk that changes in the market prices of securities that will result in fluctuations in
revenues or in the values of financial assets. The investment securities at amortised cost are not subject to the
changes in the market prices.

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by its subsidiary at FVOCI.
This arises from investments held by the subsidiary for which prices in the future are uncertain. The Group does
not have any particular strategy to manage the risk arising from the fluctuation of market price. If the price of the
equity securities increases/decreases by 10%, the impact to the Group's other comprehensive income would
be approximately US$ 89,011 (2023: US$ 115,730).

c) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Interest margins may increase as a result of changes but may
reduce losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

The Group and the Bank do not have interest rate risk arising from borrowings with variable rates which exposes
the Group and the Bank to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's and the Bank’s borrowings consist of only
fixed rates (2023: only fixed rates). The Group and the Bank do not have fair value interest rate risk as the
interest rates of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are similar to prevailing market rates.

The Management of the Group and the Bank at this stage does not have a policy to set limits on the level of
mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken; however, the Management regularly monitors the
mismatch. In addition, the Management regularly analyses and foresees the expected changes in the interest
rates and manages cash flow interest rate risk by assessing its impacts and developing actions to respond to
the interest rate risk.

The table below summarises the exposures of the Group and the Bank to interest rate risk. The assets and
liabilities at carrying amount are categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
39.2 Marketrisk (continued)

c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity

Profit orlossin 2023 and 2024 was not sensitive to higher or lower interest income from financial instruments at
floating rate as a result of changes in interest rates because there were no financial instruments at floating rate.
There are no other component of equity sensitive to higher or lower interest income from financial instruments
at floating rate as a result of changes in interest rates.

39.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Bank are unable to meet its payment obligations associated with
its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence of
this may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors, lenders, and fulfil commitments to lend.

a) Liquidity risk management process

The Management monitors statement of financial position liquidity and manages the concentration and profile
of debt maturities. Monitoring and reporting, taking the form of daily cash position and projection for the next
day, week, and month respectively, are key periods for liquidity management. In addition, the management
monitors the movement of main depositors and projection of their withdrawals.

b) Funding approach

The Group's and the Bank's main sources of liquidity arise from shareholders' capital contribution, borrowings,
subordinated debts,and customers' deposits. The sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by the management
through review of maturity of term deposits and the key depositors.

c) Non-derivative cash flows

The table below presents the cash flows of the financial instruments by the Group and the Bank by remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, whereas the Group and the Bank manage the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash flows.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's and the Bank's policy is to classify following fair value hierarchy
for its financial instruments at fair value and each class of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the

statement of financial position but for which the fair value is disclosed.

Level 1: The fair value of assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates.

Level 3: One or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group and the Bank have equity securities measured at fair value. The fair value of the equity securities is
based on the quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period, which is level 1.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

As at the reporting date, the fair values of financial instruments of the Group and the Bank approximate their
carrying amounts.

The estimated fair values are based on the following methodologies and assumptions:
a. Deposits and placements with the central bank and other banks

The carrying amounts of deposits and placements with the central bank and other banks approximate their fair
values, since these accounts consist mostly of current, savings, and short-term deposits.

b. Loans and advances

For fixed rate loans with a remaining period to maturity of less than one year, the carrying amounts are generally
reasonable estimates of their fair values.

For fixed rate loans with remaining period to maturity of one year and above, fair values are estimated by
discounting the estimated future cash flows using a current lending rate as the prevailing market rates of loans
with similar credit risks and maturities have been assessed as insignificantly different to the contractual lending
rates. As a result, the fair value of non-current loans and advances to customers might approximate to their
carrying value at reporting date.

c. Investment securities at amortised cost

Investment securities at amortised cost are at fixed rate and mature in three years. The fair values are estimated
by discounting the estimated future cash flows from the coupon and the face value using a current coupon rate
as the prevailing market rates of corporate bonds with similar credit risks and maturities have been assessed
as insignificantly different to the coupon of the current securities. As a result, the fair value of the investment
securities at amortised cost approximates to their carrying value at reporting date.
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39. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (continued)

d. Deposits from banks and other financial institutions and customers

The fair values of deposits from customers and deposits from banks and other financial institutions approximate
their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturities, which include non-

interest earning deposits, is the amount repayable on demand.

Deposits with fixed interest are not quoted in the active market and are short-term. Their fair value approximates
the carrying amount.

e. Borrowings and subordinated debts

Borrowings and subordinated debts are not quoted in active market and their fair value approximates their
carrying amount because the borrowing rates are similar to the prevailing market rates of borrowings with
similar terms and maturities

f. Other financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities are assumed to approximate their fair values due
to these items are not materially sensitive to the shift in market interest rates.
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Canadia Bank
Branches

Phnom Penh Branches

Banking Hours: Monday to Friday, 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, and Saturday, 8:00 AM to 11:30 AM

bE934T | Bokor

No. 701AB, Preah Monivong Blvd., Sangkat Boeng Keng Kang 3,
Khan Boeng Keng Kang, Phnom Penh.
023216239 | 023 216 238

RE%%51T | Chak Angre

No. 1515, National Road 2, Phum Tuol Rorka, Sangkat Chak
Angre Krom, Khan Meanchey, Phnom Penh.
0234252771023 425276

F{EE 1T | Chamkar Daung

Former Glass Factory, St. 217, Sangkat Choeung Ek, Khan Dang
Kor, Phnom Penh.

023 219631]023 219632

HE4 91T | Charle de Gaulle

No. 126, Charle de Gaulle Blvd., Sangkat Oreussey 4, Khan
7Makara, Phnom Penh.

023214 898|023 214 668

#4858 (RE) 217 | Chhbar Ampov

No. 625, National Road No.1, Phum Damslaeng, Sangkat
Chhbar Ampov Il, Khan Chhbar Ampov, Phnom Penh.
023720068 | 023720 070

Ef# 517 | Chenla

Mao Tse Tung Blvd., Sangkat Phsar Deum Kor, Khan Tuol Kork,
Phnom Penh.

023880619 | 023 880620

REEDT | IFL

No. 132 & 134, Russian Federation Blvd., Sangkat Tuek L'ak Ti
Muoy, Khan Tuol Kouk, Phnom Penh.

023902136 1023902137

B 217 | Kamboul

National Road No. 4, Phum Trapeang Kol, Sangkat Kantaok,
Khan Kamboul, Phnom Penh.

023968 787|023 968 788

#8155 (ARF) 217 | Kbal Thnol

No. 23AB, Street 271, Sangkat Phsar Deumtkov, Khan
Chamkamorn, Phnom Penh.

023222768

RFRIE 1T | Khan Pur Senchey

Russian Federation Blvd., Phum Kbal Damrei 2, Sangkat
Kakab 2, Khan Pur Senchey, Phnom Penh.

023902 396 | 023 902 397

EFA%B 1T | Khan Russey Keo Sangkat Kilomaetr Lekh
Prammuoy

Big Tree Community Mall, Ground & 1st Floor, Unit No. B1-105
-107 & 201 - 203, National Road No. 5, Phum Spean Khpos,
Sangkat Kilomaetr Lekh Prammuoy, Khan Russey Keo,
Phnom Penh.

023230 316|023 230 317

#6705 | Koh Pich

Arc De Triomphe De Koh Pich (South Wing) Building,
St. Koh Pich, Sangkat Tonle Basak, Khan Chamkamorn,
Phnom Penh.

0238881751023 888176

4317 | Main Branch

No. 315, Preah Ang Duong Street, Sangkat Wat Phnom, Khan
Daun Penh, Phnom Penh.

023868 222|023 969 222

1t#84317 | Northbridge

SHR1#45, SHR1#47, SHR1#49, Street 2004, Trapeang Chhuk
Village, Sangkat Ou Baek K'am, Khan Saen Sokh, Phnom Penh.
0232315481023 231549

EFHI591T | Phsar Heng Ly

No. 27B, Street 271, Sangkat Toek Thla, Khan Saen Sokh,
Phnom Penh.

023880 316 | 023 880 317

1+ 51T | Pochentong

No. 327, Russian Federation Blvd., Phum Paprak Khang
Cheung, Sangkhat Kakab 1, Khan Pur Senchey, Phnom Penh.
023890 805|023 890 806



BHI91T | Prek Leap

National Road 6A, Sangkat Chraoy Chongvar, Khan Chraoy
Chongvar, Phnom Penh.

023432295|023 432296
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FFED 1T | Saen Sokh

House #229 & 231, Street 1003, Phum Bayab, Sangkat
Phnom Penh Thmei, Khan Saen Sokh, Phnom Penh.
023722552| 023722553

KEHISS1T | Stat Chas

No. A15, Street 93-70 and 900, Sangkat Sras Chork, Khan
Daun Penh, Phnom Penh.

023427 217 |1 023 427 225 | 023 427 226

$R{ZtH4%1T | Stueng Mean Chey Branch

No. 7A & 8A, Monireth Blvd., Phum Damnak Thum, Sangkat
Stueng Mean Chey 2, Khan Mean Chey, Phnom Penh.
023902 328023902 329

INET2£E 91T | Suon Ousahakam

Veng Sreng Street, Phum Trapeang Thloeng 2, Sangkat Chaom
Chau 1, Khan Pur Senchey, Phnom Penh.

023989 512023989 513

I 51T | Vimean Ekareach

No. 138D, Norodom Blvd., Sangkat Tonle Basac,
Khan Chamkamorn, Phnom Penh.
0232127371023212736

FEEH9 1T | Vithei Kampuchea Krom

No. 139, Kampuchea Krom Blvd. (128), Sangkat Mittapheap,
Khan 7 Meakara, Phnom Penh.

023 885371|023885 372

&M 71T | Sovanna

No. A29, A31 and A33, Street 271, Sangkat Tumnob Tuek,
Khan Boeng Keng Kang, Phnom Penh.
0232141301023 214129

Provincial Branches

REH1TEH91T | Angkor Arcade

No. A05, AO7, National Road 6, Kruos Village, Sangkat Svay
Dankum, Krong Siem Reap, Siem Reap Province.

063766 222|063 766 333

b #4815 & 91T | Banteay Meanchey
No. A07, A09, A11, A13, A15, Phum Phum 3, Sangkat Preah
Ponlea, Krong Serei Saophoan, Bantey Meanchey Province.
054711072054 711073

EEZEHEEIN DT | Borey Peanichakam Battambang
No. A05, AO7, AO9, Street 153, Kammeakor Village,

Sangkat Svay Por, Krong Battambang, Battambang Province.
053731667 | 053731668

5317 | Bavet

National Road No. 1, Phum Bavet Kandal, Sangkat Bavet,
Krong Bavet, Svay Rieng Province.

0447150311044 715032

BE#t 91T | Kampong Cham
Preah Monivong Street, Phum Phum 7, Sangkat Kampong
Cham, Krong Kampong Cham, Kampong Cham Province.
042941 361|042 941362

i%i5#% & 917 | Kampong Chhnang

National Road No. 5, Phum La Tuek Trei, Sangkat Kampong
Chhnang, Krong Kampong Chhnang, Kampong Chhnang
Province.

026770017 | 026 770 018

BRE& 91T | Kampong Speu

Phum Krangpultep, Sangkat Rokathom, Krong Chbamorn,
Kampong Speu Province.

025210222 | 025210211

FEE & 91T | Kampong Thom

Phum 2, Sangkat Kampong Thom, Krong Stung Sen,
Kampong Thom Province.

062961787 | 062961788

I5F & 517 | Kampot

Street 701, Phum Kampong Bay Khang Tboung, Sangkat
Kampong Bay, Krong Kampot, Kampot Province.
033932692

E/2# 91T | Koh Kong

Phum 2, Sangkat Smach Meanchey, Khan Smach Meanchey,
Krong Khemarak Phoumin, Koh Kong Province.

035936 787035936 788
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BHE DT | Kratie

Building No. 427, Preah Suramarith Street, Phum Kratie, Sangkat
Kratie, Krong Kratie, Kratie Province.

072971222

k1L 44T | Krong Pailin

Group 3, Pahi Tboung Village, Sangkat Pailin, Krong Pailin,
Pailin Province.

055210019 | 055 210 020

B %17 | Krong Paoy Paet

National Road No. 5, Phum Kbal Koh, Sangkat Paoy Paet, Krong
Paoy Paet, Banteay Meanchey Province.

054 967107 | 054 218 399

=MAFS1T | Krong Suong

National Road No. 7, Phum Cheung Lang, Sangkat Suong,
Krong Suong, Tboung Khmum Province.

0426801111 | 0426801112

2R 1T | Memot District - Memot Commune

National Road No. 7, Memot Phsar Village, Memot Commune,
Memot District, Tboung Khmum Province.

0426802223 | 042680 2222

RZEBE 51T | Mondul Kiri

Street 76, Phum Kandal, Sangkat Spean Meanchey,
Krung Saen Monourom, Mondul Kiri Province.
0736388807 | 0736388808 | 073638 8309

185917 | Moung Rusessei District - Kear Commune
National Road No. 5, Pou Muoy Village, Kear Commune, Moung
Ruessei District, Battambang Province.

053217 233

JIEB 91T | Neak Loeang

No. 591E, National Road No. 1, Stueng Slout Village, Neak
Loeang Commune, Peam Ro District, Prey Veng Province.
043750221|043750 222

B ZBIEH 91T | Oddar Meanchey

Street 68B, Phum Samraong, Sangkat Samraong,
Krung Samraong, Oddar Meanchey Province.
065 622 3322 | 065 622 4422 | 065 622 0022

HBEIE 217 | Preah Vihear

Koh Ker Street, Phum Kandal, Sangkat Kampong Pronak,
Krong Preah Vihear, Preah Vihear Province.

064 210 325|064 210 326

K852 9317 | Prey Nob District - Bet Trang Commune

No. 1F-03 (WAN HUA Center), Pu Thoeang Village, Bet Trang
Commune, Prey Nob District, Preah Sihanouk Province.
034636 3301|034 6363302

HEENE 51T | Prey Veng

Street 11, Phum 7, Sangkat Kampong Leav, Krung Prey Veng,
Prey Veng Province.

043210460 |043 210 461

EiEE D17 | Pursat

National Road No. 5, Phum Sthani, Sangkat Svay At, Krong
Pursat, Pursat Province.

052740287 | 052 740 288

AEEAREEE 1T | Ratanak Kiri

Phum Chey Chumnas, Sangkat Labansiek, Krong Banlung,
Ratanakiri Province.

075974158 | 075974159

EHIEE 91T | Siem Reap Phsar Leu

No. 119, National Road 6, Banteay Chas Village, Sangkat Sla
Kram, Krong Siem Reap, Siem Reap Province.

063 966 806 | 063 966 807

BEP1T | Skun District - Soutib Commune
National Road No. 6, Pana Village, Soutib Commune,
Cheung Prey District, Kampong Cham Province.
042 680 0062 | 042 680 0063

ET#%1T | Stung Treng

Phum Kandal, Sangkat Stung Treng, Krong Stung Treng, Stung
Treng Province.

074 210 566 | 074 210 567

L& 91T | Svay Rieng

Street 208, Phum Veal Yunn, Svay Rieng District, Svay Rieng
City, Svay Rieng Province.

044712227 | 044712 228

KIEBE DT | Takeo

No. 91, Street 20, Phum Louri, Sangkat Roka Knong, Krong Doun
Kaev, Takeo Province.

0329311111 032931700

REBD1T | Takhmao

No. 2, Street 204, Takhmao Village, Sangkat Takhmao,
Takhmao City, Kandal Province.

023425885023 425886

s e

#EE 1T | Thma Koul District - Ta Pung Commune

No. 19-20, National Road 5, Group 5, Paoy Yong Village, Ta Pung
Commune, Thma Koul District, Battambang Province.
053900168 | 053900 169

%53EH 91T | Tram Kak District - Angk Ta Saom
Commune

National Road No. 3, Prey Rumdeng Village, Angk Ta Saom
Commune, Tram Kak District, Takeo Province.
032215578 032215579
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Extended Hours Branches (Monday to Sunday and Public Holidays, 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM)

KAEHRIES 1T | AEON Mean Chey

1st Floor, Aeon Mall Mean Chey, Phum Preak Ta Long 3,
Sangkat Chak Angrae Kraom, Khan Mean Chey, Phnom Penh.
023902 358|023 902 359

B S/ %91T | Boeng Keng Kang

No. 176, Street Preah Trasak Paem (63) Corner Street
Samdech Louis Em (282), Phum 6, Sangkat Boeng

Keng Kang Ti Mouy, Khan Boeng Keng Kang, Phnom Penh.
023232528 032232529

BAMKILEE 9317 | Olympia

No. S301, S302, S303, Street 161, Sangkat Veal Vong, Khan 7
Meakkakra, Phnom Penh.

0232382221023 238221

758FHIX- EiIES X | Khan Prampir Meakkakra -
Sangkat Veal Vong "A" (Olympic)

Golden Square Tower, Building No. GS11, Preah Sihanouk
Blvd., Group 62, Phum 7, Sangkat Veal Vong, Khan Prampir
Meakkakra, Phnom Penh.

0232183781023 218 397 | 023720503 | 023720 492

E4E12 94T | Santhor Mok

No. 641ABC, Kampuchea Krom Blvd., Sangkat Tuek L'ak 1, Khan
Toul Kork, Phnom Penh.

0238857181023 885717

EXFIZED1T | Sorya

Shopping Center Sorya, Street 63, Sangkat Phsar Thmey 1,
Khan Daun Penh, Phnom Penh.

0232203111023 220 312

{81t} 531T | Toek Thia

Northbridge Street, Sangkat Toek Thla, Khan Sen Sok,
Phnom Penh.

023883 300023883500

HWH 91T | Tuol Kork

No. 101F, Street 289, Sangkat Boeung Kak I, Khan Tuol Kork,
Phnom Penh.

023880492 023880495

R1EFE1T | Tuol TumPoung

No. 108CD, Mao Tse Toung Blvd., Sangkat Tuol Tumpoung I,
Khan Chamkamorn, Phnom Penh.

0232127791023 212778

& 514489317 | Techo International Airport

Building No. 999, Samdach Techo Hun Sen Blvd., Boeng
Khyang Communce, Kandal Stueng District,

Kandal Province.

023868 222

E{EE4 917 | Battambang

No. 11 & 13, Phum Prek Mohatep,
Sangkat Svaypor, Krong Battambang,
Battambang Province.

053952267 | 053 952 969

TS %8 55551T | Krong Preah Sihanouk

Building No. 355, Ekreach Street, Phum Phum Pir,
SangkatBei, Krong Preah Sihanouk, Preah Sihanouk
Province.
034933490|034934284|034934157

EHIP1T | Siem Reap

Sivutha Street, Phum Mondol 1, Sangkat Svay Dankum, Krong
Siem Reap, Siem Reap Province.

063761950 | 063 761905

Canadia Bank Lao PDR Branches (Monday to Friday, 8:00 AM to 03:30 PM)

INEESRTT (F4B91T) | Canadia Bank Lao Ltd (Head Office)

Unit 7, Pangkham Street, Xiengnheun Village, Chanthbouly
District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.
(856) 21227 999

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (Sanjiang Service Unit)
Wattainoithong Village, Sikhottabong District, Vientiane
Capital, Lao PDR, (SANJIANG SHOPPING MALL).
(856) 21256 279

Canadia Bank Lao Ltd. (Dongchong Service Unit)
Sengsavang Village, Saysettha District, Vientiane Capital, Lao
PDR, (PTT Dongchong Gas Station).

(856) 21463 345
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Correspondent
Banks

CORRESPONDENT BANK NAME CURRENCY LOCATION SWIFT CODE
BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS USD/CNY/RMB  SHANGHAI, CHINA COMMCNSH
BANK OF CHINA (HONG KONG) LIMITED PHNOM PENH

CNY CAMBODIA BKCHKHPPCLR
RMB CLEARING CENTRE
FRANKFURT,
COMMERZBANK AG USD/EUR COBADEFF
GERMANY
DBS BANK LTD USD/SGD SINGAPORE DBSSSGSG
GUANGXI BEIBU GULF BANK CO.,LTD CNY/RMB  GUANGXI, CHINA BGBKCNBJ
ICBC LIMITED PHNOM PENH BRANCH CNY/RMB CAMBODIA ICBKKHPP
SEOUL, SOUTH
INDUSTRIAL BANK OF KOREA usD IBKOKRSE
KOREA
JOINT STOCK COMMERCIAL BANK FOR FOREIGN TRADE
USD  HANOI, VIETNAM BFTVVNVX
OF VIETNAM (HEAD OFFICE)
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. usp NEWYORK, UNITED CHASUS33
STATES
BANGKOK,
KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED USD/THB THAILAND KASITHBK
SEOUL, SOUTH
KEB HANA BANK usD KOREA KOEXKRSE
SEOUL, SOUTH
KOOKMIN BANK usD KOREA CZNBKRSE
BANGKOK,
KRUNG THAI BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED USD/THB THAILAND KRTHTHBK
MIZUHO BANK, LTD JPY TOKYO, JAPAN MHCBJPJT
OVERSEA CHINESE BANKING CORPORATION LIMITED USD/AUD/ (l:\léDD//CS;gFI)D/ SINGAPORE OCBCSGSG
FRANKFURT,
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK GERMANY BRANCH EUR GERMANY SCBLDEFX
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (HONG KONG) LIMITED USD/HKD HONG KONG SCBLHKHH
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LONDON, UNITED

STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (LONDON) GBP KINGDOM SCBLGB2L
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (NEW YORK BRANCH) ushD NEW YORK, LSJ.II\_IX.II-_IIEEQ SCBLUS33
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (SINGAPORE) LIMITED usb SINGAPORE SCBLSG22
STANDARD CHARTERED BANK (TOKYO BRANCH) JPY TOKYO, JAPAN SCBLJPJT
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A (NEW YORK INTERNATIONAL USD NEW YORK, UNITED PNBPUS3NNYC

BRANCH)

STATES
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Download the Report Here

No. 315, Ang Doung St., Corner Monivong Blvd., Phnom Penh, Cambodia.

www.canadiabank.com.kh
+855 (0) 23 868 222



